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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY w. O. BOX 5337 BOSSIER CITY, I.~UIalANA 71171 -~7 

The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
March 26, 2004 

In accordance with Section 4.06, paragraph (7), of the City Charter, I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2003. The financial statements were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified pubtic accountants. I believe this report presents comprehensive information about the City's financial and operating activities during 2003 that is useful to taxpayers, citizens, and other interested persons. This report was prepared by the Accounting Division of the Finance Department and consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has established an internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because tlc cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasenablc rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be ftec from material misstatement. We assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. In accordance with Section 3.10 of the City Charter, the City Council is required to provide for an annual independent audit of the accounts and financial transactions of the City by a firm of independent certified public accountants duly licensed to practice in the State of Louisiana. The accounting firm of KPMG LLP was selected by the City to conduct its annual audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are flee of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financial section nf this report. 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council March 12, 2004 
The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the City's separately issued Single Audit Report. GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be fo~ad immediately following the report of the independent auditors. PROFILE OF THE CITY OF BOSSIER The City of Bossier City was incorporated in 1907. It is located on the cast bank of the Red River in Northwest Louisiana, approximately thirty-five miles south of Arkansas and twenty miles east of Texas. The area dates back to the 1830's when it was the Elysian Groves Plantation of James and Mary Cane. Steamboat loads of cotton, corn, and sweet potatoes were shipped to markets in the south and east, from the plantation port known to many as "Canes Landing". The current area of the City is approximately 41 square miles. The City of Bossier has been organized under a mayor-council form of government since 1977, when the current City charter was adopted by the voters. The charter provides for a seven-member council, with five members selected for four-year terms from separate districts of the City and two members elected at large by all the qualified electors of the city. The mayor is elected at-larga for a four-year term, is not a member oftha council, but has veto power over council action. The City provides a wide range of services including public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, water and sewer services, recreational activities, general administration functions, and others. These financial statements present the City of Bussier (the primary govemmant) and its component units. The component units are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. Included as discretely presented component units is the financial data for the City Court, City Marshal, the Metropolitan planning Commission, and the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority. They are reported separately within the City's financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. Additional information on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes to the financial statemants. 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. Prior to October 15, the Mayor files with the City Clerk a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and related financing sources. The City Council conducts public hearings and proposes adoption of the various budget ordinances. Prior to December 15, the City Council adopts the final budgets controlling the financial operations of the City for the ensuing fiscal year. 

V! 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council March 12, 2004 
Legal budgetary control for operating budgets is exercised at the department/object class. The ordinances provide lump sum appropriation at the object level. The City Charter allows the Mayor to authorize the transfer of budgeted amounts from one activity to another within the same lump sum appropriation, within the same department. The City Charter provides that expenditm, es may not legally exceed appropriations. Formal budgetary integration and encumbrance accounting are employed as managernent control devicas during the year. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. 
Bossier City is a dynamic growing area with a proud past and a future filled with the promise of continued growth. It is an area that continues to be defined by the Red River arid major cultural features including Barksdale Air Force Base and riverboat casinos. Some of the key factors in the development of the area include its central location among major southern cities and its importance as a transportation hub. Barksdale Air Force Base is one of the largest military installations in the nation and by far the most significant employment generator in the area. The direct impact of Igarksdale Air Force Base on the local economy is estimated to be in excess of $430 million. Bossier City and Parish have continued to gain in population in recent decades with both growing at a faster pace than statcwide rates for Louisiana. The City added 15,000 residents between 1970 and 2000 and the Parish grew by nearly 34,000 persons. The Bossier Riverfront has undergone significant change over the last decade. The area has seen the addition of Red River chanoclization, the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway extension, and the riverboat Casinos. Bossier's Old Downtown is evolving into an entertainment area which has transformed into the Riverwalk Entertainmant District which is innnediately next door to the Horseshoe Casino, the top-grossing casino in Louisiana. A recent independent feasibility study of the local market indicates that the development of "Louisiana Riverwalk" will generate $200 - $300 million annually. Louisiana Riverwalk will consist of entertainment, retail, hospitality, and restaurant elements. The approximately 56 acres of riverfront property is situated in the heart of the Bossier/Shrevq)ort Metropolitan area. The site will be developed into a variety of live music, performance theaters, restaurants, a blend of retail specialty shops, multiplex movie thealres, and hotels. The project will be a major attraction for 14 million gaming and tourist visitors annually, but also to the metro area and surrounding region's growing population. Also along the Riverfront District, is the Bossier City CenturyTel Arena. The arena can house a variety of sporting and performance programs, as well as serve as a major assembly hall for the community. According to the music trade industry publication Pollstar, in 2002, the CenturyTel Center has been ranked in the top 50 arenas in the world and in the first quarter of 2002, the concert industry tracking rating firm ranked the Bossier City facility 18th in ticket sales for the first threc months of 2002. Overall, the local economy is stable and the outlook is good. 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council March 12, 2004 
LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING In accordance with Section 6.09 of our City Charter, the Mayor submitted the year 2004-2008 Capital Improveraent Program to the City Council m the first quarter of 2004. There are 21 projects which total approximately $54 million in progress as of December 31, 2003. There are 80 planned projects from year 2004 tlwough 2008 which total approximately $117 million. Some of the major projects and funding of these projects are summarized as follows: 
Benton Road Overpass Riverwalk Project Traffic Street Improvements Utilities Projects Arthur Ray Teague Parkway Interchange Old Shed Road Extension Viking Drive Improvements North Construction of ART Parkway Municipal Complex Expansion 

Fundin2 Riverboat Capital Projects Fund Sales Tax Bonds Sales Tax Capital Improvements and Riverboat Capital Projects Revenue Bonds and Net Assets Riverboat Capital Projects Fund Riverboat Capital Projects Fund Riverboat Capital Projects Fund Riverboat Capital Projects Fund Sales Tax Bonds 

Amount $12,000,000 $27,000,000 $5,000,000 $29,000,000 $4,800,000 $1,500,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $7,500,000 The City administration plans to continue the process of looking ahead financially for its operational and capital needs. CASH MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES The City maintains a pooled cash and investment account that is available for use by all funds, except those reslricted by statutes or other legal reasons. At the end of each business day, collected balances in all City bank accounts are deposited into a SWEEP Account. These funds are invested in U.S. Government and U.S. Agency securities under the terms of an overnight repurchase agreement. As of December 31, 2003, the City's cash ~esources were invested as follows: U.S. Government securities Certificate of Deposits SWEEP Account at bank Total 
51% 41 8 

The City's investment policy is to exercise that judgment and care which men of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs. Investments are selected as investments, not for speculation, considering the probable safety of the capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. 
VIII 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor end Members of the City Council March 12, 2004 
Accordingly, deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. State statutes require that all public funds should be insured or collateralized. The City's policy is not to have uninsured/uncollateralized funds which it controls. RISK MANAGEMENT The City retains the risk for property, liability, workers compensation, and dental insurance. As part of this comprehensive plan, resources are being accumulated in internal service funds to meet potential losses. In addition, various risk control techniques including an employee safety program, drug-free workplace program with mandatory drug screening for new employees, and pre-employment physicals have been implemented to minimize accident-related losses. The City has third-party coverages subject to self-insured retentions which are more fully described in the notes to the financial statements. PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS The City administers two defined benefit pension plans: the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF) and the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund (PPRF). Each year, an independent actuary calculates the amount of the annual contribution the City must make to the pension plans. In 2002, the City contributed 102.8% of the annual required contribution of the FPRF and 108.5% of the annual required contribution of the PPRF. In 2003, the City contributed 83.6% of the annual required contribution of the FPRF and 87.7% of the annual required contribution of the PPRF. In 2002, the City had funded 38.5% of tbe actuarial accrued liability of the FPRF and 28.2% of the actuarial accrued liability of the PPRF. The current percents funded are FPRF 39.0% and PPRF 31.0%. The unfunded amounts for FPRF and PPRF are being amortized over ten years. The City also provides pension benefits for firemen hired after January 1, 1980 end policemen hired after September 9, 1977 through the Statewide Firefighters Retirement System and the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System. The City has no obligations in connection with employee benefits offered through this plan beyond its annual required payment to the pension boards. Additional information on the City's pension arrangements and postemployment benefits can be found in the notes to the financial statements. AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Bossier City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 3 !, 2002. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting end financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by the City and its management. We are proud to have received this award each year for more than the past twenty years (beginning with our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1981). In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the contents of which conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council March 12, 2004 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe our current report continues to conform to Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 



Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and f'mancial reporting. / 
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Executive Director 
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KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report 
To the Honorable Members of the City Council and the Honorable George Dement, Mayor City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the City'S basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We have also audited the fmanciat statements of each of the City's nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service funds presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining fund financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, as listed in the table of contents. These f'mancial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the component unit financial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority (Authority), which represents 71.5% and 227.1%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by another auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Authority, is based on the report of the other auditor. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the f'mancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditor provide a reasonable basis for oar opinions. In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with aceounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 



respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service funds of the City as of December 31, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 26, 2004 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. The management's discussion and analysis, schedules of funding progress, and budgetary comparison information listed as Required Supplemental Information in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The individual fund schedules, the introductory section, and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The individual fund schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly we express no opinion on them.. 
March 26, 2004 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
We offer readers of the City of Bossier City's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Bossier City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. Financial Highlights Key financial highlights for the 2003 fiscal year include the following: ~ The assets of the City of Bossier City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $302.9 million (net assets). Of this amount, approximately $80.5 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City's obligations to citizens and creditors. ~ The total net assets of the City of Bossier City increased by $16.0 million for the year ended December 3 I, 2003. Net assets of governmental activities increased by $16.1 million and net assets of business-type activities decreased by $90 thousand. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Bossier City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of $130.9 million, a decrease of $1.6 million in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, $15.1 million was unreserved, undesignated, and available for spending; $76.7 million was unreserved but designated for subsequent years' expenditures; $9.8 million was reserved for debt service; $8.9 million was reserved for encumbrances; and $20.2 million is held in a permanent trust in which $17.9 million may not be spent. ~ At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $6.0 million or 14.8% of total General Fund expenditures. ~ The City of Bossier City's total debt decreased $5.1 million (4.3%) during the current fiscal year primarily as a result of principal payments. Overview of the Financial Statements This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Bossier City's basic financial statements. The City of Bossier City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (l) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. The government-wide financial statements arc designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Bossier City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City of Bossier City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two repotted as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Bossier City is improving or deteriorating. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City of Bossier City's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g,, uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the City of Bossier City that arc principally supported by taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and charges for services (govammental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all of or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The City of Bossier City's governmental activities include general government, public safety, highways and streets, cultural and recreation, and City Court and Marshal. The business-type activities of the City of Bossier City include water and sewerage, sanitation, and emergency medical services. Not only do the govermzent-wide financial statements include the City of Bossier City itself, which is the primary government, but also its component units, City Court of Bossier City, Bossier City Marshal's Office, Metropolitan Planning Commission, and Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority. Although these component units are legally separate, their operational or financial relationship with the City of Bossier City make the City of Bossier City financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Bossier City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonst~'ate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Bossier City can he divided into three categories: governmental fimds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary fimds. Governmentalfunda. Governrnental funds are used to account for essentially'the same functions reported as governmental activihes in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City of Bossier City near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-terra impact of the City of Bossier City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. The City of Bossier City maintains twenty-two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the goverrunantal funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund, Arena Special Revenue Fund, Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund, Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund, and Public Health and Safety Permanent Fend, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data for the other 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
sixteen govarnmcntal funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this t~port. The City of Bossier City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fond and certain special revenue funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. Proprietary funds. The City of Bossier City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of Bossier City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewerage, sanitation, and emergency medical services. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Bossier City's various functions. The City of Bossier City uses internal service funds to account for its dental health care and worker's compensation. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they I~ve been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govermnent-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewerage operations which is considered to b~ a major fund of the City of Bossier City. Data from the other two proprietary funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajur proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. Conversely, both internal service funds arc combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the report. Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City of Bossier City. Fiduciary funds are not reflocted in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Bossier City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The notes provide additional Information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Other information. In addition to the basic fmancial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Bossier City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees and compliance with budgets for its major funds. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor proprietary funds, end internal service funds arc presented iwanediately following the required supplementary information on pensions and budgetary comparisons. Financial Analysis of GOvernment-wide Activities As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the City of Bossier City, assets exceed liabilities by $302,898,288 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Managernent's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
The largest portion of the City of Bossier City's net assets totaling approximately $189.1 million (62.4%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, streets, drainage, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Bossier City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Bossier City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. City of Bossier City's Net Assets December 31, 2003 and 2002 Goverllmeutal at'tlvltlts Budn~s-tyl~ activities 2003 2002 2003 2002 Carrem mad other assets $ 161,841.252 141,336,942 20,698,666 25,521,401 162,539,918 166,858,343 Capital assets 189,128,230 1751178,869 76~796,448 73tl28,729 265,924,678 248,307,598 Total assets 330,9691482 316,515,811 97,495,114 98~650t 130 428,464,596 415,165,941 Current and other liabilities 7,550,748 5,476,664 1,194,225 1,136,754 8,744,973 6,613,418 Long-term liabilities 871671,410 91,378~212 29,149r925 30,272,148 116,821,335 121~650,360 Total liabilities 95t222,158 96,854~876 30,3441150 31,408,902 125,566,308 128,263,778 Net assets: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 140,330,985 129,285,985 48,742,367 43,209,460 Restricted 29,963,514 28,662,311 3,338,741 1,666,172 89,073,352 172,495,445 33,302,255 30,328,483 Ur~rtstriet~l 65,452t825 . 61~712~639 _ 15~0691856 22r3651596 80~52216gl g4r07g,235 Total net assets $~  219r660r935 67,150,964 67~241,228 302~898T288 ,286,902,163 11.0% of net assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Debt Service Funds account for $13,151,726 of the total of restricted net assets. The remaining balance are monies restrieted for public health and safety. State law requires the proceeds from the sale of the Bossier Medical Center be held in perpetuity, however, the investment earnings may be spent each year for purposes of public health and safety. As of December 31, 2003, the nonexpendable portion was $17,911,368 and the expendable balance, which represents unspent investment earnings, was $2,239,161. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of $80,522,681 is used to meet the City of Bossier City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Bo~icr City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 6 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
The City of Bossier City's net assets increased by $15,996,125 during the c~t fiscal year. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
Revenues: Program revenues: 

City of Bossier City's Changes in Net Assets 
2003 2002 2003 

Charges for servicen $ 6,676,666 6,527,587 Grants and contributions 6,895,224 4,075,713 General revenues: Sal~s taxes 30,117,504 29,341,705 Other taxes 10,402,249 10,054,535 Gaming 15,261,464 15,234,198 Other general revenues 5 476 196 5t603r606 Total revenues 74,829~303 701837,344 Expenses: General Government Public safety Highways and streets Culture and recreation City Coart and Marshal Payments to component units Integer on long-term debt Water and sewerage Sanitation Emergency Medical Services Total cxpcnsen 

10,738,060 28,026,913 7,028,600 6,998,869 1,299,469 145,710 4,121,524 

9323,153 25,678,549 3,997,047 7,155,218 1,073,671 132,650 3,262,080 

Excess (deficiency) before transfers 16,470,158 20,114,976 Tr',msfers (383~769) (499fl64) Change in net assets 16,086,389 19,615,812 Net assets at beginninB of year 219~660~935 200p04$r123 Net assets at end of year $ 235~747r323 219~660w935 

16,392,976 15,963.842 

818,999 1,174t672 17,211~975 17,138,514 

1,391,493 2,375,756 10,885,174 2,364,900 
3r918,759 3,337,955 17~686~008 16,588,029 
(474,O33) 383.769 

23,069,642 6,895,224 22391329 4,075,713 
30,117,504 29,341,705 10,402,249 10,054,535 15,261,464 15,234,198 6t295,195 61778,278 92 041,278 87~975,858 
10,738,060 28,026,913 7,028,600 6,998,869 1,299,469 145,710 4,121,524 1,391393 2,375,756 

9,423,153 25,678,549 3,997,O47 7,155,218 1,073,671 
132,650 3,262,080 0,885,174 2,364,900 

3,918,759 313371955 76,045,153 67,310~397 
550,485 15,996,125 20,665,461 499.164 -- -- (9O,264) 1,049,649 67~41~28 661191r579 67 150964 67 241~228 

7 
15,996,125 20~65,461 206902 163 266,236t702 302~898~288 286 902 163 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Disc~tssion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
Revenues for the City of Bossier City's governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 were $74.8 million compared to $70.8 million m 2002. Program revenues for governmental activities increased $3 million in 2003 compared to 2002. The City of Bossier City received $861,739 more in federal grants as a result of receiving hazard mitigation funds. In addition, grants and contributions increased due to contributions of infrastructure from developers totaling $1.9 million. Also, grants and contributions increased $1,000,000 due to funding received from the Red River Waterway Commission related to the Riverwalk project offsetting these increases was a decline of $500,000 in grants received in prior year flooding. In total, general revenues increased $1,779,020. Sales tax (49.2%) is the largest component of general revenues. ~ Sales taxes increased $775,799 due to a slow down in economic conditions as reflected in the national economy. ~ Other taxes increased $347,714 as a result of an increase in total assessed property values which increases the total property tax revenue. ~ Other general revenues increased as a result of revenues received from a third party related to the purchase of lend for the Riverwalk project development. 

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities 7.3% 

20.4% 

40.2% 
[] Sales Tries 
~ Gaming ~ Other Taxes 
~ Grants and centribut ns 
[] Other general revenues 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $58.4 million, an increase of $7.6 million. The key factors for the increase were: ~ General government and public safety expenses increased $1.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively, due to payroll increases in 2003. 
8 (Continued) 





CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Managcmcnt's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
Revenue by Source - Business-t~pe Activities 

15 63.0% 

Expenses and Program Revenues- Business-type Activities The costs of these activities were 517.7 million, an increase of 51.1 million. The Water and Sewerage fund accounted for $500,000 of the increase as personnel costs and interest expense costs increased 38.3%. The Emergency Medical Services Fund accounted for $600,000 of the increase as a result of personnel costs and an increase in the provision for the allowance for doubtful accounts. 

10 (Continued) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Managcment's Discussion and Analysis Dcccmber 3 l, 2003 
Program Expenses and Revenues - Business-type Activities ~ Program Expenses D Program Revenues 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
~ The Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund has a total fund balance of $33,090,519, all of which is unreserved but designated for subsequent years' expenditures. Riverboat gamlng revenues collected prior to t999 were accumulated in this fund until a base amount of $30 million was attained, as required by City ordinance. A net increase of $616,226 occurred during the currant fiscal year because of investment earnings along with transfers in of unspont capital project funds. ~ The Arena Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operations of the CenturyTel Arena. The Arena has a fund balance of $129,747, which reflected a decrease of $50,393 in 2003. ~ The Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $17,677,026 of which $5,128,627 is reserved to liquidate contracts and purchase orders. A net increase of $517,516 occurred during the era'rent fiscal year. Riverboat gaming fees collected are accumulated in this fund. Those fees remained flat from prior year. Expenditures in this fund are for specific projects as outlined in the City of Bossier City's capital projects budget and are not expected to be sin, filar from year to year. a The Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund was established to account for the proceeds and expenditures of $29,260,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds. The fund balance at year-end was $24,338,840. The City of Bossier City intends to use these funds for capital improvements for riverfmnt and downtown development. ~ The Public Health and Safety Permanent Fund has a total fund balance of $20,150,529, all of which is reserved for public health and safety. The Rind experienced a net increase in fund balance of $1,361,946 as a result of a transfer in of unspent capital project funds and investment earnings. Proprietary Funds Water and Sewerage net assets increased by $33,794 as charges for services and transfers were sufficient to cover expenses of operating the system. General Fund Budgetary Highlights The budget policy of the City of Bossier City complies with state law, as amended, and as set forth in Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government Budget Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 et seq.). The original budget for the General Fund of the City of Bossier City was adopted on November 5, 2002. No amendments were made. Differences between the budget and the actual results of the General Fund are as follows: 
~ Sales and use tax revenues were estimated to increase based on estimates from the Bossier Parish Sales and Use Tax Division. Actual results were greater than budget by $445,488 as a result of increased retail sales. ~ Utility tax revenues were expected to be similar to prior year revenues. Actual revenues were more than budget by $189,796 as a result of higher than projected local electrical tax payments. 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
Actual revenues for license and permits were higher than budgeted by $566,673 as a result of the construction of several new business establishments and apartment housing, a hotel expansion, and gaming facility renovations. 
~ Police and Fire department expenditures were under budget by $257,287 and $201,440 due to the postponement of hiring additional personnel. ~ Culture and recreation expenditures were greater than budget by $220,203 due to settlement of a lawsuit. Capital Assets and Debt Administratio~ Canital Assets: The City of Bossier City's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2003 amounts to $265,924,678 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, savets, drainage, furniture and equipment, and construction in progress. The table below shows the value at the end of the fiscal year. 

Land and land improvements Buildings and sh-uctures Equipn~nt and vehicles Water and reservoir treatment plant Transmission and dism'bution system Infrastructure Construction in progress - buildings Total 

City of Bossier City's Capital Assets (net of depredation) Governmental activities Business-type activities 20~ 2~2 $ 51,719,176 68,914,816 3,581,477 
48,659,150 70,270,154 4,051,116 

861,184 
2,701,375 37,092,952 31.759.645 

2002 861,184 
2,498,695 37,584,948 29.865.288 48,913,938 45,563,536 -- -- 15r998~823 $ 189r 128~230 6~634r913 175 178 869 Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following: 

4p381~292 76p796~448 2~318~614 73~128~729 
~ Payment of $786,000 related to purchase of fight of way and engineering and design of the Benton Road Overpass, Payment of $700,000 related to the purchase of fight of way related to the Shreveport Barksdale Interchange along the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway. ~ Construction in progress of $2.5 million related to the widening of Traffic Street. 

13 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2003 
~ Construction in progress of $6.3 million related to parking facilities and a seawall for Riverwalk Development. Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Bossier City had total debt outstanding of $113,456,952. The City of Bossier City has no general bonded debt outstanding. The following table summarizes bonds outstanding at December 3 I, 2003 and 2002. City of Bossier City's Outstanding Debt Governmental activities 

$ 84,697,683 88,927,952 28,759,2__ 69 29,919,269 During the current fiscal period, the City issued $5,190,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series ST-2003 for the purpose of refunding the Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1991 and the Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1993. There were no changes in the ratings of the City's bonds. Moody's Investors assigned an A2 rating to the City of Bossier City related to the 2003 refunding. For additional information regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic financial statements. Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates The following economic factors were considered when the budget for FY 2003 was presented to the Council ~ Three riverboats operate in Bossier City and represent some 4,500 direct jobs and another 4,000 indirect jobs at restaurants, hotels, and retail stores in this region. Major commercial developments include continued expansion of the Port of Shreveport-Bossier which now includes a cargo wharf, a heavy rail sidetrack, a petroleum wharf, a 50-ton bridge crane, and a 30,000 square foot storage shed. Also, Barksdale Air Force Base, another major factor in our regional economy, had over $50 million in new construction during the past year. a For the year 2004, the City of Bossier City has projected a 2.5% increase in sales tax and property tax revenues and we intend to continue to monitor and adjust for any unanticipated local downtums in the economy. 

14 (Continued) 



Requests for Information 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis Dcccrnber 31, 2003 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Bossier City's finances for all those with an interest in the City of Bossier City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Director of Finance of the City of Bossier City, P.O. Box 5337, Bossier City, LA 71171, or by calling (318) 741-8525. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Assete Cash and c~h equiwdents Investments Receivables, net Internal balances Prepaid items and otbar ~sets Inventories Net pension asset Bond issue costs, net Capital assets: Land and conslr~ction in progress Other capital assets, net of depreciation Total assets 
Accounts payable Accrued liabititles AccPaed interest payable De fened revenue Deposits and deferred charges Noncurl~nt liabilities: Due within one year Due in more th~ one year Total liabilities Net A~ts Invested in capital assets, net ofrelatad debt Restricted for: Debt service - expendable Public Health and Safety - nonexpendable Public Health and Safety ~ expendable Unrestricted Tota~ net assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Net Assets December 31, 2003 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Primary Government Governmental activities 12,658,155 14,085,253 12,154,224 757,042 704,219 89,782 648,339 744,238 67,717,999 121,410,231 

Businus-lype activities 

5,242,476 71,553,972 

13,895,844 130,708,596 14,597,289 904,219 336,205 648,339 ,449,426 72,960,475 192,964,203 

Component uni~ 1,026,003 3,746,222 83,499 

91A31 
4,335,287 626,867 399,675 1,252,902 936,017 

456,200 254,979 319,167 163,879 1,439,495 27,710,430 30,344,150 
40,330,985 48,742,367 9,812,985 17,911,368 2,23~161 65,452,825 $ 235,747,324 

3,338,74 
15,069,856 67,150,964 

4,791,487 881,846 718,842 1,252,902 t ,099,896 6,878,833 109,942,502 125,566,3088_. 
13,151,726 17,911,368 2,239,161 80,522,681 302,898,288 

10,557 61,003 
I10,000 3,135,000 3,316,560 



P.mary Io~e~m~t: G~rnem~ a~v~ Gene~d Rev~t $ Put~ic safety Hishways i,d mee~ C~d~J end reueaden ~ty Court ~ Mmhal Paymum to ~mponeat units t~e~est ~ ]enS-tc~ de~ 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Activities Year ended December 31, 2003 
R~mu~ 

10.738.060 28.026.91] 7.028.600 6~99~.169 I 299.409 145.710 4.121.524 
2,5~0,673 L094,0~2 
Opefs~n~ t~ntsHd ~onlfibufions 
346.639 L226,310 1.794.876 

CJl~tll ~~ lad c~trlbudoas 
1.569.627 1.957.772 

Net(exp~) rn~ueHd chnlninn~eaeJ ~m~ ~erDmeil Cove~m~tal #clivitieJ 
(6.281.121) (25.706.571) (5.070.828) (2.162.032) 0.299.469) (145.710) ~4~12],524) To~d E~mental K6vit~ ~r 3 ~J l] 4~ II 6r676.666 3~367T825 3.527.399 {44~787.255L Busi~type ~fivitio Wares and Sewerage E~gcflfy ~i~.al Slfvl~~ Total htsiM~type aetivltiel 

11.391.493 10,322.962 2.375.756 2.597372 3r915.759 3.472.~2 17T68~ l 16,39'2.976 

8usin~t?pe ~dvitlu TO~I 
(6.28J.12)) (25.706.571) (S.070.e2S) ~2.162.032) (I.299.469) (145.710) ~4~121.524) 

(I.068,531) II.~S.511) 222.016 222.016 (446,517) (A4{~17) {].293.032) (I.293.o32) Tmal prmu~ 8ovemmenl $ 76.045.153 23,069.64:~2 3,367.825 3,527.399 ~  ~ (46 080 287 Bmai~ Public Trait Fmlncigg Authmity $ 292.758 285.921 Clty Courts 223.493 309.460 City MarSJlal 108.573 145.655 Mmo~litta Pl~ning Co~issim 231.306 138.000 Total ~mponea un~s $ ~57.|2t0 Geae~ ~ue~: T~: ~ tl~es le~ fe~ gc~cr~ pumoses Sa~ u~ I~ied lot caph~ p~e)eets Sales rues I~ f~ debt sam.i~ SaI~ react levled for pepsi~ p~ns Frmehise tax~ G~ing Interlmvlnm,m~ lnvearaem **~~ings Paymen~ from City of Bme6~ City M,k~ell~s Tr~d~ Total ~al ~ an~ chae~e in net 
N~~ ass~~ - raiding 

3~0 599 3.001.169 438,400 (383 769~ 383.769 

8.490,128 1,555,466 4.~75,599 7,952,493 ~,g33 946 1,912,121 $.261.464 2.664.047 3.439,369 

CompOa~l units 

2~r9C6 

)5,$48 145,710 ]5.433 
16.086,359 (90,264) 15.996.)25 198.f]97 2 ] 9.660.935 67.241.22B 286.902.163 $ 235.747,324 67.150.964 302.898.288 1,431,39g 1,630,295 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Balance Sheet Governmental Funds December 3 I, 2003 
~a RlvefbOtl Special Gaml+*l Sm.cial I~a* General Revenue Feud Fund C,h ~d ~ +quivalm Inv~mmems 13de from mhef funds Ple~l items ~ either ut~s ]nv~tol~e+. at ~t Invlmmmenls - re~tncled 

392.885 1,301,856 6.s22.9~0 3.426.]22 29.514.14I 310.265 
RivrM~eat SIIa Tu GamlagC.pild BemdCa~lal Pre~.eu F.ad Prel~ctsFeud 1.027.8~ 930.9"24 -- 15.524.695 525.922 1.3d$.409 -- S20.523 162,239 
2+682~44~J 23.106.703 242.906 
P~hlleHttllb and SllfelY P+mNgf.l Fund 2+076.b61 t 7.SS'I.SS8 ISS.045 
10<Jr57+ 

Olk~ Telal Gov~nmmt*l Gov~mml*l Fl.dl l%ud! 2.O36.332 12.573,313 25.749.956 113+085.209 3.015.767 12.154.224 820,523 162.239 19.782 10057~ 
Li~iIili~: A~unt+ pllyab[e $ 445.15~ 160.009 A~-~Jed [ia~fifiel 526,867 -- ue+ to ~ f.md+ Defined ~ev~u~ 1.053+188 -- 

260.254 947.$25 1.693.262 
390,039 936,017 

2.610 7~,756 00.000 -- 63,4z~ -- 715,~,45 Total liabilidm 2+02+121t; 160,00~ 1,586,3 I0 ~47,525 1.693.262 102+610 I ,~63.782 8,078.708 Fund bal~: Re~edf~: Dt4,t s~ice -- -- E~ 152.685 -- Inventcsrm g9.782 Pre~dlter~ Pemic Health and SiftS, -- -- Untied, d~.iSn ated for mbRtluerll X~s' expendJture~ -- 33.0'90.519 Un~ed 
t62+239 
132.492) 
5.12g.627 
12.548.399 
]32+652 
24.206.188 20,150,529 I~igneted reported in ~n~r~j~ cspi~ wojec~ funds U~ed, reported in ~ma~ar ~e~ial 

9.812.985 3.486.888 

6.81t.128 6.U0~*.264 6.8t 1.128 
Tot~ fund bal~ 6.282+22__3 33.090.519 ]29747 17.677.O26 ~4.338.840 20rigOr529 29.23S.273 130907.157 TolsI liabilili~ md field bel~ $ 8.307.433 33.250.528 1~7]6 057 ~  26.032+102 20.253.139 30.a02.055 ] 38.9~5.B65 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets Year ended December 3 I, 2003 
Fund balances - total governmental funds Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds Governmental capital assets Less accumulated depreciation Other assets used in governmental activities that are not financial resources and therefore are not reporled in the governmental funds Unamortized bond issuance costs Net pension assets represent the excess cumulative contributions to pension plans and are not considered as financial resources for governmental funds Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund Some of the City of Bossier City's property taxes will b~ collected after year-end but arc not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore are deferred in the governmental funds Long-term liabilities including bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds Deferred loss on refunding Accrued interest payable Compensated absences Claims Bonds, notes, and loans payable Net pension obligation - Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are reported with govemmeatal activities Net assets of governmental activities 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

130,907,157 

224,235,597 (35,107,367) 189,128,230 
744,238 
648,339 
905,870 

489,087 (399,675) (924,675) (21o,o0o) (85,186,77o) (938~998) (87,171,031) 
584,521 235,747,324 



Racins co.lmi~J~ - Louisi~ Gamins Z~,,e~mem ~in~ Total ~m~ Ezpeidhlr~ C~.a~ Sovemment PubliD safzsy Hi.ways ~d Itreea Cult~ and te=r~=i~ Chy Co.rt ~d M~ Prkmi~l C~t~ ~]ay Paymems to ~on~ooAem ..;u 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Funds Year ended December 31, 2003 
RIvecbeit Cmllz SpOil Fasd 27.861.394 2.540.673 I,Sio,524 562,2~ 
Ar~n Sp~,~l ~me F.ad 
2 SO~I~ 

Riv~be.I SilnTel GaminI I~end C.~td C~#tll !~ro~llFund F'roJeehtFu~d 28.125 
o~ Funds 12.628.092 3.6903S2 239,793 16,9t$ 

Total f,nd+ 40.489.486 2.$40.673 $.229.03 I 562.293 3O41961 4 ]2.97'7 412977 -- -- -- 14.286.194 -- -- -- ]4.286.194 38.169 5f~.226 -- 341.549 463.291 344.622 529.591 2.283.448 1.371.845 -- -- 2.405.599 -- 182.953 Z 14 550 410741947 35.3741992 566~26 2r802iI68 17.o51.467 ~ 463.291 $27.575 17.219.323 74.0151042 
1,151,561 
-- 9.893#81 5.269.496 -- 

885,141 711,059 25,851 3,965,0~ 4.183.872 7,60"2,809 
10.180.498 27.0112.705 1.221.209 5.396.409 1.273.338 3,%5,000 4,]83,B72 2LTbS,986 145i710 E~ (delicacy) of ~peadlt~ ~$.3tl2r636) 56612~ ~49r393) S.167.786 (4,~D6+205) 461.946 (t 57t409) (i.199.685) 

R ei~rlltln8 bolld i~u~l Piym~t tO ~fun6ed bond ~OW Traitsfers in Transfm out 6.157,ll8 2,l)~0,~ -- To411 ~ li~inu and ~ 5.752.8111 SO.O00 II ODD) (7.650.270) 
5.157.304 5.157.304 -- {5,157,3C4) (5.1 S?.30i) 2,000,~ 5.932.212 I ~1~+030 ~]r ] 00,0O0) (5.367.529) ( 16,473,799t 

ioi~ ]70,laz 61 ~i,226 (~0,3tl) 517,516 (4,110~ 205 ) 1,361,N6 dO7.274 (LSS3,454) pund balmees - be#mi~ Fund t, ebmx~ - earn8 5~912.0+l ~  II0.14fl 17.159.~10 29 i4~ 045 II.?II.SII ll.l]org~t 13~.t!1.611 $ 6.282.223 33.090.519 ~ 17,677,026 ~  ~  ~  130.907.157 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities Year ended December 31, 2003 
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Capital outlay Depreciation expense The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets. Revenues mooned in the statement ofaetivitias which are not reported in governmental funds because they do not provide current financial resources. This adjustment is to recognize the net change in unavailable revenues. (Property taxes) The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to gov~:mmcntal funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The detail of these differences in the treatment of tong-term and related items is as follows: Bond premium Issuance costs Payment to escrow agent Principal payments The changes in other long-tetra assets and liabilities are reported in the statement ofaetivities but do not affect current financial resources of governmental funds. The changes are as follows: Policemen's Pension and Relief Fand net asset Fireman's Pension and ReliefFand net obligation Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, arc not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Amortization of deferred foss on refunding Amortization of bond issue costs Amortization of bond premium Increase in compensated absences Decrease in accrued interest Decrease in claims Internal service funds arc used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. Change in net assets of govemmentel activities See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 21 

(I,583,454) 

17,391,738 ~5,384,404) , 12,007,334 
942,027 

(41,965) 60,303 68,278 3~965~000 4,051,616 
(206,646) (85],3S7) (1,058,033) 
(24,454) (57,511) 53,147 (43,178) 4,550 432,000 364,554 

4321078 16,086,389 



 

Assets Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents Investments Restricted: Cash ~ cash equivalents lnv--~,~ments Receivables, net Receivables, net Pr~paid items Inventories To~leur~ntassets Noncurrent assets: Capital assets: Land and land improvca~mts Construction in process Water reservoir and trea~nent plant Transmission and distribution system Equipment Less accumulated depreciation 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Net Assets Proprietary Funds December 3 I. 2003 

Total capital assets (net of accumulatnd depreciation) Deferred bond costs, at cost les~ amortization Other deferred charges Total other assets Total noncurreta assets Total assets Liabilities Cunent liabilities (payable flora current assets): Accounts payable Accrued liabilities Retabiages payable Due to other fimds Customer deposits Accnted claims Compen~ted ab~.nc~ Total current Habilities (pQoyabk from current a.~et~) Current liabilities (payable from reslricted a~els): Accrued interest on revenue bonds Current portion of long-term debt Total ~ liabilities (payable from restricted assets) Total CmTCm liabilities Noncurrent liabilities: Compensated absences Bonds and notes payable Total noncurrent liabilities Total liabilities Net/umeta Invested in capital assets, net of related dcbi Restricted for debt service Unrestricted Total net assets 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Actlv|tles Emter~ise Funds Wl|ir aad 807.779 13.004.828 397.524 3.201.644 58.740 1.200.560 246.423 

Enterpri~ Fnnds 32,386 416,871 
1.183~65 397.524 3~01.644 58,740 2.384.325 246~423 

C.,onramem~l Actlvttiel In~rllal Servke Funds 84.g42 899.469 

76T752T872 705.188 200.000 905~188 77~658r060 96.575.558 
381,190 87,792 108,379 

1.242.519 (I.198.943) 
43.576 1.676.598 
456.200 146,600 10~,379 757.042 163.879 

319,167 1,215~000 319,167 1,215,000 1.534.167 
941.770 

109.093 27.544.269 27.6531362 301051.964 48.698.791 3.338.741 14.486.062 $ 66.523~594 

57.068 57.068 166,161 27,544,269 27,710,430 
43.576 48.742.367 -- -- 3.338.741 -- 583.794 15.069.856 584.521 627?370 67.150t964 584t521 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Fund Net Assets Proprietary Funds Year ended December 31, 2003 
Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds Water and 

Cbergcs for services pledged as security for revenue bonds Charg~ for services Miscellaneous Total operating revenues Operatla| Expenses Pers~al services Supplies Utilities Repairs and maintenance Contractual cxpcnses Provision for bad debt Miscellaneous Claims Depreciation and amortization Total olmating expenses Openaing hw~ne (loss) Nonoperaflng Revenues Ogzpens~) Investment ~~nings Inlerest expense A~rtization Fiscal charges 
Transf~s in Trmlsfets out 
Total nonoI~.ratin8 revenues (expenses) Income before contributions and transfers 
Change in net assets Total net assets - bcsinning Total net assets - ending 

See a~comcanyin8 notes to basic financial statements. 

Other lgaterprlse Funds Total 
Governmental Activities Internal Service Funds 

10,322,962 -- 10.322,962 -- -- 6,070,014 6,070,014 2,600,155 408.211 10,731,173 
4,647,539 831,925 726,441 433,813 185,309 901,166 

79,565 6,149,579 
2,922.569 250,186 34,648 22.069 1,791,684 937,575 280,483 

487,776 16,880,752 
7,570,108 1,082,1 I I 761,089 455,882 1,791,684 1,122,884 1,181,649 

10,046,570 684,603 
319,615 (1,278,050) (47,422) (19,451) 

331,223 (1,278,050) (47,422) (19,451) 

577,771 3,177,926 

.188,432 60,233 ,495,3O8 
2.743,973 433,953 

040,705) 374,499 374,499 
(133,328) 130,270 (121,000) 9,270 (124,058) 751,428 627,370 

(474,033) 432,078 504369 ~121,ooo) 383,769 432,078 152.443 584,521 



Cash flows from operating activities: Receipts from operations Payments 1o suppliers Payments to employees Claims paid ~h~T ~cip~ tpayrecnts) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Funds Year ended December 31, 2003 

Net cash provided by operatin8 activities Cash flows from aoncapital finandns activities: Transfers in Transfers out 

Water and Sewera~z $ 10,450,332 (3,097,740) (4,573,943) 
Other Enterprise Funds Total 5,935,392 (3,152,954) (3,029,936) 16,385,724 (6,250,694) (7,603,879) 

Governmental Activities Internal Service Funds 3,177,926 (I,547,480) (I,434,406) 
374,499 130,270 504,769 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 374,499 Cash flows from eatpltal and related flnan~lnfl activities: Acquisition and construction of capital assets (6,043,397) Pnncipal paid on debt (1,1~3,000) Interest paid 0,332,566) Fiscal charges {19,451~ Net cash used in capital mad related financ[ns activities Cash bws from investing activities: Sale of investments Purchase of investments Inte~st r~ccived l~t cash provided by (used in) investing activities Net inc~'ase (decrease) in ce.sh and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

(6,043'397) (l,160,O00) (1'332,566) 
1,919.644 -- 1,919,6~ -- (417,220) (417,220) 425.457 8.545 434,002 34,936 (360,669) 

70,307 14,535 84.842 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Funds Year ended December 31, 2003 

Reeoncilladon of operating income (1~) to net ush provided by (used in) operating activities: Opem~ng income (loss) Adjustments to reconcil~ operating income (loss) m net cuh provided by (wed in) operating acfivitlcs: Depreciation end ~tion Provision for bad debts (Increase) de~ in mscts: Accounts receivab]c receivable Inventories Prepaid items and other assets Increase (decrease) in liabilities: Accounts payablc Accrued liabilities Due to other funds Customers' dclmsits Claims and judBments Total adjustments 

Water and Other Enterprise Funds Total 
Ggvernmental Activities Internal Service Funds 

2,320,377 185,309 
(63,so7) (3,035) 03,oe2) 8,333 
13,976 73,596 (15,777) 5,868 

55,301 937,575 
(I ,072,l 97) (16,054) 
42,691 13,633 537,806 

2,375,67~ 1,122,884 

56,667 87,229 522,029 5,868 
(98,815) 
60,9O2 

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,176,381 353,819 3,530,200 396,040 N~n~h acres: Amortization Change m fair value of investments 
See accompmtying notes to basic financial statements. 

47,422 (49,376) 47,422 (49.725) (1,875) 



Cash and cash equivalents Receivables: Interest receivable Other Investments, at fair value: U.S. government securities Certificates of deposit Total investments Other assets Total assets 
Accounts payable Taxes paid under protest Refundable deposits Total liabilities 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets Fiduciary Funds December 31, 2003 
Assets 

Liabilities 

Net Assets Held in trust for pension benefits 
Scc accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Pension Trust Funds 1,694344 149,991 
A~encyFunds 1,427,20I 

1.428.773 
35,063 1,329,741 63.969 



Contributions fi'om City: Sales taxes, net Fire insurance premiums Employer's contributions City Court fines City liquor licenses Total contributions Employee contributions Investment earnings Less investment expense 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets Pension Trust Funds December 31, 2003 

Net investment earnings Total. additions 
Pensions and benefits Administrative expenses Total deductions Change in net assets Net assets - beginning Net assets - ending 

Additions 

Deductions 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

5,931,466 130,222 18,040 177,695 6,145 
18,040 1,155,036 (114,527) 1,040,509 7,322,117 
5,904,727 35.903 5,940,630 1,381A87 33,669,085 



/Itau~t$ Cash and cash equivalents Invvs~ts Accrued interest Due from other governments Capital assets: Other capital assets, net of depreciation Total assets 
Accounts payable Accrued interest payable Noncurrent liabilities: Due w~thin one year Due in rno~ than one year Total liabilities Net ABeta Invested in capital assets Restricted for: Debt service LInreslricted Total net assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Statement of Net Assets Component Units December 31, 2003 
Bo=~ierPu~i~ Tru~Finaneing AuthoH~ 2,943 3~ 11,050 19,485 

City Courts 767,497 120,501 54,960 
City Marshal 246,565 
7,890 

Metropolitan Plannl.g Commission 8,998 4,671 1,164 

61,003 1 I0,000 3,135.000 
4,415 2,938 10,557 61,003 i 10,0oo 3,135,000 

227,475 91,131 -- -- -- 227~75 938~43 251~51 121,895 1,311~89 
See acconq~anyin8 notes to h~sic financial statomcnts. 



 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the City) was incorporated in 1907 and operates under a City Charter dated July 1, 1977, which provides for a strong Mayor-Council form of government. The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety, streets, sanitation, water and sewerage, planning and zoning, recreation, and general administrative services. Education and welfare are administered by other governmental entities. The basic criterion for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commission, public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a primary governmental unit's reporting entity for basic financial statements is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing body and the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization or if there is a financial benefit/burdan relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary government should be included in its reporting entity. The financial statements present the City (the primary govemman0 and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. Discretely Presented Component Units The component units columns in the basic financial statements include the financial data of the City's component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. Metropolitan Planning Commission The MetroiTolitan Planning Commission (Commission) is responsible for the orderly physical development of the City and the surrounding planning area. The Commission makes reeorranandations to the City Council and the Parish Police Jury. The Commission consists of nine members with four appointed by both the City and the Bossier Parish Police Jury, and one member is elected by joint action of the governing authorities. Although the Commission is legally separate, the City acts as its fiscal agent and has the ability to modify and approve its budget. The Commission serves the citizenry of the City of Bossier City and parish. City Court of Bossier City The City Court of Bossier City (City Court) was created by the special legislative act. Its jurisdiction includes the incorporated area of the City. The City judge is elected and cannot be removed by City officials. The City Court is fiscally dependent on the City. The City has the ability to modify or approve its budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected by the City Court, pursuant to State statute, which are under the control of the City Court. The City Court serves the citizenry of the City. The financial statements of the City Court included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended December 3 I, 2003. 

30 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Bossier City Marshal's Office The Bossier City Marshal (City Marshal) is an elected official The City Marshal is fiscally dependent on the City. The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected as court costs, pursuant to State statute, which are under the control of the City Marshal. The City Marshal serves the citizenry of the City. The financial statements of the City Marshal included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority The Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority was created by a trust indenture, pursuant to state enabling legislation, which made the City the beneficiary. There are five trustees appointed by the City Council for terms of five years. In accordance with the terms of the trust indenture, the City has no power to transact business for the R~stees nor to control or direct the actions of the trustees. The City is entitled solely to the benefits of the trust, and at the termination of the Wast it shall receive the residual of the trust. The City cannot access the organization's funds at will, although there is some ability to access them at the discretion of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority. The Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority serves the citizenry of the City. The financial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2003. The Commission does not issue separate financial statements and consists of only one fund. Their financial statements are included in this report and these financial statements can be obtained from the Finance Departngmt, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171. Complete financial statements of the other individual component units may be obtained at the following addresses: City Court of Bossier City P.O. Box 5337 Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 Bossier City Marshal's Office P.O. Box 5337 Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 710 Benton Road Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Other Related Organizations Bossier Housing Authority The Bossier Housing Authority was created by State statute, and it is legally separate from the City. The Mayor appoints the five commissioners; however, the City cannot impose its will on the Bossier Housing Authority since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioners. The Bossier Housing Authority is fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or borden relationship with the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City's financial statements. The accounting policies of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, conform to generally accepted accounting prine/ples as applicable to governmental units. The accounting policies of the discretely presented component units are consistent with those of the City. The following is a sun-unary of the more significant policies: (#) Gouernment-wide and Fund Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements (GWFS) (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that arc clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Depreciation expense is identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Separate fund financial statements (FFS) are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded fTom the GWFS. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the FFS. 32 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
(b) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation The GWFS are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have bean met. Governmental fund financial statements arc reported using the c~t financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they arc both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the currant period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they arc collected within 60 days of the and of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Ad valorem taxes are considered "measurable" at the time of levy, whereas such items as beer taxes are considered "measurable" when in the hands of intermediary collecting agencies and are recognized as revenue at that time. Substantially all other non-intergovemmental revenues are susceptible to accrual and are recognized when earned or the underlying transaction occurs. Sales taxes are accrued in the individual funds to which they pertain. For intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met, In reimbursement type programs, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures re.corded. In other programs in which monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements, the resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-halancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balanec/retained earnings, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are surmnarized by type in the financial statements. The following fund types arc used by the City: 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Governmental Funds Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The City reports the following major governmental funds: General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for the monies received from the riverboats prior to 1999 and the earnings on those monies. City ordinance required the riverboat monies be accumulated in this fund until a base amount of $30 million was attained. The funds will be used for capital and other undetermined projects. Arena Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues received and operating expenses incurred in the operations of the City's Arena. Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund- This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with downtown development, major park improvements, and other major capital projects and is funded by a percentage of gross gaming receipts and the initial payments made by three riverboat casinos and related interest earnings. Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund- This fund was established in 2002 to account for the proceeds received from the Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2002 and the expenditures of the bond monies. Public Health and Safety Permanent Fund - This fund was created to account for the proceeds from the sale of the Bossier Medical Center. Amounts received in excess of the required principal balance of $17,911,368 and earnings on the principal may only be spent for the purpose of public health and safety. Additionally, the City reports the following governmental fund types: Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Debt Service Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The debt service funds receive a portion of all ad valorem and sales taxes paid to the City. Capital Project Funds - Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or eunstrnetiun of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 3 l, 2003 
Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector. All proprietary funds and the pension trust funds are accounted for on a capital maintenance measurement focus; that is, the measurement focus is upon determination of the change in net assets. The City reports the following major proprietary fund: Department of Water and Sewerage Enterprise Fund - Operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, with water and sewerage treatment. Additionally, the City reports the following proprietary fund types: Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for activities in which established fees and charges are designed to recover its costs, including capital costs such as depreciation and debt service. Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one department of the City to other departments on a cost- reimbursement basis. The City maintains two internal service funds for wurkmen's compensation and general insurance coverage. Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. Pension Trust Funds - The City maintains three retirement funds which arc accounted for and reported as fiduciary funds since capital maintenance is critical. These funds arc the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund. Agency Funds - Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. The Consolidated Sales Tax Fund accounts for the collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board and various municipalities within the parish. The Riverboat Gaming Agency Fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of funds received from the riverboats and paid to other local govemment agencies under the terms of the agreements with the riverboats. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the GWFS and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Government Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 35 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the GWFS. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's water and sewer function and various otber functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. Transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they involved organizations external to the City, such as routine employer contributions from the General Fund to the pension trust funds, are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved. Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise and internal funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise and internal service funds include the cost of sales and servzces, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. The accrual basis of accounting is used by the proprietary funds and the pension trust funds. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. The reserve method is used to account for bad debt expenses on enterprise fund receivables. Unbillcd service receivables of the Department of Water and Sewerage Fund, Sanitation Fund, and Emergency Medical Services Fund arc reflected in the accompanying financial statements at approximately $385,267, $97,980, and $58,180, respectively, at December 31, 2003. 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, mad similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the GWFS. Capital assets am recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost for assets where actual historical cost is not available and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The City maintains a threshold levcl for capitalization of fixed assets except land and construction in progress. All land and construction in progress is capitalized, regardless of the amount. All other capital assets arc capitalized utilizing a threshold of $25,000 for land improvements, $50,000 for buildings and building improvements, $5,000 for furniture, equipment and vehicles, and $250,000 for infrastructure. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are not reported in the governmental FFS Estimated useful life is managoment's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service demands. Capital assets have not been assigned a salvage value because management feels that the salvage value is immaterial. Straight-line depreciation is calculated based on the fullowing estimated useful lives: Land improvements Buildings Building improvements Water reservoir and treatment plant Transmission and distribution system Furniture and equipment Vehicles 

20 
0-- 0- 5- 
30 years 40 years 40 years 60 years 50 years 10 years 5 years 

In the GWFS, and proprietary fund types in the FFS, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the term of the related debt. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. In the FFS, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. (e) Investments For all funds, investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. The inveslments at December 31, 2003 were primarily U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities (see note 2 for the City's investment policy). 
Prepaid items consist of items such as prepaid insurance and other prepaid expenditures. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time such items are purchased in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The reserve for prepaid expenditures in governmental fund types is equal to the amount of prepaid expenditures to indicate a portion of the fund balance is not available for future expenditures. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
(g) Inventories Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out). Inventories in the General Fund consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time individual inventory items are purchased and charged as an expenditure when used in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Inventories in the enterprise funds consist of repair materials and spare parts. 
The Departmant of Water and Sewerage of the City of Bossier City requires that its first time water and sewer customers or customers not in good standing place a deposit before service is rendered. If customers maintain the status of good standing for one year, the deposits are rcturncd. These monies are not restricted by law and are generally used by the Department of Water and Sewerage in meeting current operating cash requiremants. The Sales Tax Department requires deposits of certain establishments involved in special events and before being allowed to sell alcohol. The deposits are used to offset delinquent tax bills or are returned upon the respective activity ceasing. Proceeds from ticket sales for Arena events sold in advance are reflected as a deposit until the event occurs and settlement with the event promoter is complete. 
Taxes not collected within 60 days after yenr-end are deferred. Certain licenses are collected in advance; therefore, the recognition of revenue is deferred until the following year. Rental fees for luxury boxes and advertising at the Arena are collected in advance. The revenue is recognized over the term of the agreements. 
City employees are granted vacation and sick lcavc in varying amounts. The maximum allowable accumulatiun of vacation and sick leave is up to 40 days and 100 days, respectively. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation clays up to the maximum allowable accumulation. The City does not accrue vacation until matured. Vacation and sick leave arc recorded as an expenditure when paid in governmental funds. The estimated liability for unused vacation for governmental funds is recorded in the GWFS. Accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and 1/ability of those funds as it is earned by the employees. (k) Pension Plans The City of Bossier City, Louisiana, and the State of Louisiana collectively have six pension plans which cover substantially all employees who meet certain length of service requirements. See note 8 for details of these plans. 
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Crl'Y OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Prior to its sale in June 1999, Bossier Medical Center participated in the Medicare and Medicaid programs as a provider of medical services to program beneficiaries. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The City believas Bossier Medical Center was in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Revenues derived from the Medicare program are subject to audit and adjustment by the fiscal intermediary and must be accepted by the United States Depar~ent of Health and Human Services before settlement amounts become final. Revenues derived from the Medicaid program are subject to audit and adjustment and must be accepted by the Department of Health and Hospitals of the State of Louisiana before settlement amounts become final. Final settlements through December 31, 1998 for the Medicare and Medicaid programs have been reviewed by program representatives and adjustments have been recorded to correct for the changes required. 
Certain proceeds of the City's enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. (n) FuadEquity In the FFS, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 
All outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other funds. There is no activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of the fiscal year. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the GWFS as internal balances. 
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property when the assessment is approved by the Louisiana Tax Commission. Taxes are normally levied in November of each year and are due on or before December 31. The City bills and collects its own property taxes. Historically, 96% of the taxes have been collected within 60 days after the due date. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
The City currently levies the maximum tax allowed by State statutes and the Louisiana Constitution for general governmental services other than taxes for special purposes (such as the funds designated for the Fire and Police Departments) or the payment of long-term debt. The City is permitted to levy taxes up to 10% of the assessed property valuation for each specified purpose for the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt after approval by the voters of the City. 
Federal and state governmental agencies represent an important source of supplementary funding to finance housing, employment and consWaction programs, and other activities beneficial to the cormnunity. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General Fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and enterprise funds. The grants normally specify the purpose for which the funds may be used and are subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative. 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers each fund's equity investment in the pooled cash account and all highly liquid debt instruments (including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
The City is self-insured up to $250,000 for non-civil service employees and $350,000 for civil service employees for workmen's coition coverage. Self-insured claims arc recorded in the City's internal service funds in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10. Incurred but not reported claims are recorded as liabilities In the Insurance Fund and Liability Insurance Fund. An estimate for these claims is provided by a third party administrator based on historical experience. (2) Cash and Investments City of Bossier City (Primary Government) All deposits of the City are held by area financial institutions. At December 3 !, 2003, the carrying amount of the Ci~'~ ~sits, i~l'ading ~uciar,j f~mds, "~as $74,333,g53 and 'the bank balance ~ $75,460,$24. This difference is due to the outstanding checks at December 31, 2003. The City maintains a pooled cash and investments account for all funds of the City except the pension trust funds and the Bossier Medical Center Fund. Each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments is presented as either "'Cash and Cash Equivalents" or "Investments" on the balance sheet. Interest income is allocated to each respective individual fund monthly based on each fund's average daily cash balance. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or was collataralizcd with securities held by the City's agent (one of its custodial banks) in the City's name. Statutes require that securities pledged for deposits of the City be held by a bank other than the pledging bank. (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSI]gR CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
State statutes authorize the City to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, government agencies' securities, certificates and time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiana, or mutual or trust fund institutions which have underlying invcs~nents consisting solely of and limited to securities of the United States government or its agencies. In addition, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund may invest in bonds of the State of Louisiana or of the City of Bossier City. During 2003, the City invested in certificates of deposit and U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities. The City's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at December 31, 2003. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with securities held by the countcrparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with securities held by the countcrparty, or by its trust deparmg~t or agent, but not in the City's name. 

1 U.S. gavemment and U.S. government agency securities $ 1067598~269 Total inves~acnts Total deposits Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments, including restricted cash and investments 

2 3 Fair value 

The pension ~'ust funds own approximately 3.0% of~e City's deposits in financial institutions and 30.6% of the U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities. 
All deposits of the component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year ends, all deposits are insured or coUateralized with securities held in the component unit's name by its agent (the trust d~partment of a bank other than the pledging bank). The investments of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority at November 30, 2003 consist primarily of mortgage-backed securities and invcstment agreements which are considered category I invcstmants. The securities have a fair value of $3,757,465 at November 30, 2003. 
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O) Ad Valorem Property Taxes The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. Total assessed value was $314,566,810 and $309,006,730 in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Property taxes arc recorded as receivables and revenues in the year for which it was levied. The General Fund property tax receivable at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is shown net of an allowance for uncollectible taxes as of each year-end of $65,000. The distribution of the City's levy (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) was as follows for 2003 and 2002: 
General Fund - unrestricted General Fund -restricted for Fire and Police Departments 6.90 19.87 $ 26.77 

6.90 19.87 26.77 
A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than every 4 years. A revaluation was completed for the tax roll as of January 1, 2000. 
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(4) Receivables Receivables as of year-end for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor, internal service and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are outlined below: 
Governmental activities: General Fund $ Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund Arena Special Revenue Fund RivcTboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund Public Health and Safety Permanent Fund Nonmajor gowmmental funds Total governmental 

Preperty Other Gaming Accrued Customers taxes taxes fees Interest 4,552.058 1,437,170 -- 13,249 -- 310,265 
1.185,207 163.202 -- 242.906 -- 188,045 

Due from other IBovernments 
Allowance for uncollt.ctfble Net Other accounts reeelvable~ 81,845 503.588 (65.000) 6,522.910 -- 310,265 (7.500) 525.922 -- 1.348.409 -- 242.906 -- 188.045 

activities $ 533,422 4,552,058 4,080,295 1.185,207 1.178,693 193,461 503,588 (72.5007 12,154,224 Business-type activities: Water and S~;~.verage Fun d 1.460.760 -- -- -- 164.520 -- 18.170 (384.150) 1,259,300 Nonrnajor business-type activities 1,686,601 Total business-type activities $ 3 147,361 
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4,231 168,751 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows: 
Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) Hotel Motel Taxes (Hotel Motel Taxes Special Revenue Fund) Licenses collected in advance Arena rental and advertising revenues collected in advance Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements Total deferred revenue for governmental funds 

$ 
Unavailable Unearned 
255,870 650,000 49,470 390,039 

$ 905,870 1,252,902 
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(5) Capital Assets A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 
Governmental activities: Capital assets not being depreciated: Land and land improvements $ Construction in progress Total capital assets not being depreciated Capital assets being depreciated: Buildings and sa'uctures Equipment and vehicles Infraslnlctute 

Balance December 31, 2002 Balance December 31, Additions Retirements 2003 
48,659,150 3,060,026 51,719,176 15,998,823 
55,294,063 14,748,739 (2,324,803) 67,717,999 82,743,895 17,055,535 50,533,715 731,548 1,512,640 4,681,386 -- 83,475,443 (741,121) 17,827,054 

Total capital assets being depreciated 150,333,145 6,925,574 (741,121) 156,517~598 Less accumulated depreciation for: Buildings and slroctures Equipment and vehicles Infrastructure (12,473,741) (13,004,419) (4,970,179) (2,086,886) (1,966,534) (1,330,984) 725,376 (14,560,627) (14,245,577) (~301,163) Total accumulated depreciation (30,448,339) 15,384,404) 725,376 (35,107,367) Total capital assets being depreciated, net 119,884,806 1,541,170 (15,745) 121,410,231 Capital assets, net $ 175,178,869 16,289,909 (2,340,548) 189,128,230 Construction in progress consisted of $28,113 for additions for the Marshal's office at the municipal complex; $335,994 for the Old Shed Road/Hwy 80 project, $370,020 for the construction of the seawall at the Riverwalk; $288,715 for improvements to Riverside Drive; $45,873 for the Hamilton Road Project; $1,533,047 for the Shreveport Barksdale Interchange Ramps project; $5,233,881 for the Traffic Street Widening project; $6,953,808 for the Riverwalk project; and $1,209,364 for the Benton Road Overpass project. 
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Business-type activities - Water and Sewerage: Capital assets not being, depreciated: Land and land improvements Construction in progress Total capital assets not being depreciated Capital assets being depreciated: Water reservoir and treatment plant Transmission and distribution system Equipment Total capital assets being depreciated Less accmrmlated depreciation for: Water reservoir and treatment plant Transmission and distribution system Equipment Total accumulated depreciation 

Balance December 31, 2002 Balance December 31, Additions Retirements 2003 
861,184 -- -- 861,184 4,381,292 3,179,798 2,168,838 (106,160) 5,242,476 
53,554,577 631,288 42,587,807 6,028,661 2,794,516 554,915 
102,171,045 3~980,719 
(15,969,629) (1,123,284) 
(12,722,519) (3,628,843) (900,159) (296,934) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 69,850,054 1,660,342 

54,185,865 45,382,323 6,583,576 
(17,092,913) 
(13,622,678) 0,925,777) 

Capital assets, net $ 73,029,852 3,829,180 Q06,160) 76,752,872 Construction in progress consisted of $3,004,911 for the Odor Control Project at the Northeast and Red River Treatment Plants; $238,335 for the Sanitary Sewer Rehab at Old Minden and Shed; $236,024 for the WTP Concrete Rehabilitation; $843,671 for the Water Main ART/Isle of Capri; and $58,352 for the Water Tower at Kingston. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 

Other business-type activities: Capital assets being depreciated: Equipment Less accumulated depreciation for: r~qdipment Capital assets, net 

Balance December 31, 2002 
98,877 1,341,396 Total busineas-type activities: Capital assets not being dapreciated: Land and land imp~vements $ Comtmction in progress 

(55,301) (55,301) 

Balance December 31 2003 
43,576 1,286,095 

861,184 -- -- 861,184 2,318,614 2,168,838 (106,160) 4,381,292 Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,179,798 2,168,838 (106,160) 5,242,476 Capital assets being depreciated: Water reservoir and treatment plant Transmission and distribution system Equipment 
53,554,577 631,288 -- 54,185,865 
42,587,807 7,271,180 2,794,516 554,915 Total capital assets being depreciated 103,413,564 3,980,719 Less accumulated depreciation for: Water reservoir and Ucatment plant Transmission and distribution system Equipment Total accumulated depreciation 
(12,722,519) (4,772,485) (900,159) (352,235) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 69,948,931 1,605,041 Capital assets, net $ 73,128,729 

45,382,323 7,826,095 
(17,092,913) (13,622,678) (5,124,720) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: Governmental activities: General Government $ 1,028,414 Public safety !, 102,006 Highways and streets 1,330,984 Culture and recreation 1,896,869 City Court and Marshal 26,131 Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 5,384,404 Business-type activities: Water and sewer $ 2,320,377 Emergency medical services Total depreciation ex~nse -business-type activities 55,301 $ 2,375,678 (6) Long-Term Debt City of Bossier City (Primary Government) The following is a summary of the long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Governmental activities: Revenue bonds payable Premium on bonds Deferral on refunding Claims and judgments payable Net pension obligation Compensated absences Governmental activily long-term liabiJities Business-type activities - Water and Sewerage: Revenue bonds payable Compcns,~tcd absences 

Beginning Ending balance Additions Reductions balance 
$ 87,895,000 1,032,952 1,481,152 87,611 881,497 

5,190,000 41,965 (513,541) 1,494,498 851,387 690.115 
8,920,000 53,147 24,454 1,865,596 
84,165,000 1,021,770 (48%087) 1,110,054 938,998 

Due within one,ear 3,860,000 
900,054 

$ 9L378,212 7,754,424 11,510,134 87,671,410 5,439,338 
$ 29,919,269 192,900 162,583 6O,OOO 23.195 28,759,269 232,288 ,215,000 123.195 Water and Sewerage long-term liabilities $ 30,112,169 162,583 1,283,195 28,991,557 1,338,195 Other business-type activities: Compensated absences $ 159,979 99,689 101,300 158,368 101,300 Total business-type activities $ 30,272,148 262,272 1,384,495 29,149,925 1,439,495 
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The following is a ~ of Nmfl transactions (all revenue bonds) for the year ended December 3 ! 2003: Bonds payable at January I, 2003 New issue Debt retired Premium on new bonds Amortization of premium Deferral on refunding bonds Bonds payable at December 3 I, 2003 

,*9 

$ 118,847,221 5,190,000 (I0,O8O, OOO) 41,965 (53,147) (489,087) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
In addition to $10,080,000 of bonds retired, the City paid $5,210,833 in interest. Bonds payable at December 31, 2003 are comprised of the following issues Revenue bonds - applicable to general city operations: 
$8,765,000 1997 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of $425,000 to $830,000 through 2014; maturing November I of each year; interest at 4.45% to 5.2% $34,750,000 1998 Public Improvement Sales Tax Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $825,000 to $2,515,000 through 2022; maturing December I of each year; interest at 4.6% to 6.75%; callable on or after December l, 2007 $9,355,000 2001 Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of $695,000 to $1,010,000 through 2012; maturing November 1 of each year; interest at 3.0% to 4.25% $4,880,000 2001 Revenue Bonds due in annual installments of $420,000 to $570,1)00 through 2011; maturing October 1 of each year; interest at 3.0% to 4.0% $29,260,000 2002 Public Imtn'ovement Sales Tax Bonds due in annual installments of $520,000 to $2,620,000 through 2022; maturing December 1 of each year; inU:rest at 3.0% to 5.0% (plus a premium of $981,304) $5,190,000 2003 Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds due in annual installments of $695,000 to $800,000 through 2010; maturing December 1 of each year; interest at 2.0% to 3.0% (plus premium of $40,466 and net of deferred amount on refunding $489,087) 

6,955,000 
30,820,000 
7,915,000 
4,025,000 
30,241,304 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Revenue bonds - applicable to water and sewer operations: $7,595,000 1996 Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of $605,000 to $880,000 through 2010; maturing October 1 of each year; interest at 4.3% to 5.1~/* $6,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 due in annual installments of $2 ! 5,000 to $415,000 through 2019; maturing October I of each year; interest at 3.45% $3,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 due in annual installments of $125,000 to $245~000 through 2022; maturing October 1 of each year; interest at 3.45% $16,410,000 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 due in annual installments of $75,000 to $ l,S 10,000 through 2022; maturing October 1 of each year, interest at 3.5% to 5.0% Total water and sewer bonds Total revenue bonds 

5,345,000 
5,015,000 
2,249,269 
16,150,000 28,759,269 $ 113,456,952__..__ The annual requirements, excluding $1,021,770 premium on bonds and deferral of $489,087, to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2003 are as follows: 

Year ending December 31 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 - 2013 2014-2018 2019 - 2023 

Governmental activities Busines~tvue activities 
$ 3,860,000 3,871,177 4,015,000 3,720,972 4,200,000 3,560,867 4,380,000 3,395,104 4,575,000 3,093,121 23,990,000 14,417,630 20,030,000 7,795,410 191115~000 2~447~750 $ 84r 165T000 42,302~031 

1,215,000 1,255,000 1,315,000 1,375,000 370,000 8,615,000 8,189,269 6~425~000 28r759~269 

1,276,576 1,227,004 1,173,666 l,llg,4gl 793,593 4,480,951 2,682,481 763~138 13~515~890 

10,222,753 10,217,976 10,249,533 10,268.585 8,831,714 51,503,581 38,697,160 281750t888 168 742 190 There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. Management believes the City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. In 2001, the City authorized the issuance of $3,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 for the purpose of acquiring and constructing improvements for the treatment of odor control. In 2001, the City received an installment of the purchase price of the bonds in the amount of $1,676,318. During 2002, the City received additional purchase price installments of $692,950. In 2003, the City made principal payments of $120,000. 
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In 2003, the City issued $5,190,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series ST-2003. The bonds were issued to refund $1,205,000 of the 1991 Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds and $3,750,000 of the 1993 Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds and to pay for the costs of issuance. Included in the proceeds was a reoffering premium of $41,965. Existing funds of $68,278 along with proceeds of $5,157,304 (after payment of $74,661 in issuance costs plus a premium of $41,965) were used to immediately refund the bonds. As a result, the liabilities for those bonds have been removed from these financial statements. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $513,541. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the life of the old debt, which is shorter than the life oftbe new debt. Amortization for 2003 was $24,454. The difference between the cash flows required to service the old debt and the cash flows required to service the new debt and complete the refunding totaled $492,994. An economic gain (difference between the present value of the old and new debt service payments) of $391,655 resulted from the refunding. Changes in the Depar~ent of Water and S~,verage assets restricted for debt service and unrestricted and invested in capital assets during the year ended December 31, 2003 were as follows: Department of Water and Sewerage Fund: Restricted: Balance at beginning of year $ 1,666,172 Transfer from (to) unreserved net assets 1,672,569 Balance at end of year 3,338,741 Invested in capital assets and Unrestricted: Balance at beginning of year Changes in net assets Transferred from (to) net assets Balance at end of year Total net assets 

52 

64,823,628 33,794 (1,684~68) 63,173,054 $ 66,511,795 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Details of restricted assets at December 31, 2003 are as follows: Department of Water and Sewerage: Water Division: Utility Revenue Bond Funds- 1996, 1997, 2001, and 2002 Utility Revenue Serial Bonds Debt Service Fund: Investments $ 3,201,644 Accrued interest receivable 
Water Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund: Cash and cash equivalents Accrued interest receivable Total restricted assets applicable to the Water Division Sewerage Division - Sewerage Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund: Cash and cash equivalents Accrued interest receivable Total restricted assets applicable to the Sewerage Division 

188,100 4.488 
209,424 27,384 

Total Department of Water and Sewerage restricted assets $ 3,657,908 
State law allows a maximum of 10% of assessed valuation of bonded debt for any one purpose or 35% of the total assessed value for all purposes. The City assessed property value at December 31, 2003 is $314,566,810. The maximum debt allowable for any one purpose and total debt allowable by state law as of December 31, 2003 is $31,456,681 and $110,098,384, respectively. The City currently has no general bonded debt outstanding. Therefore, at December 31, 2003, the City has a debt margin of $110,098,384 available for issuance pursuant to the 35% limitation. 
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Component Units At November 30, 2003, bonds payable consist of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1995 Series as follows: 
Term Bonds, 6.0% interest, maturing on August 1, 2015 Term Bonds, 6.125% interest, maturing on August 1, 2028 Serial Bonds, 4.2% - 5.5% interest, annual maturities beginning on August 1, 1998 and ending on August 1, 2008 Total bonds 

570,000 
2,310,000 
365.000 

The principal amount of bonds called for early redemption for the years ended November 30, 2003 was $1,980,000. Portions of cash, temporary investments, and investments included m the Mortgage Program Fund, as prescribed in the indentures, arc restricted for bond principal reduction. As of November 30, 2003 and 2002, these restricted amounts totaled approximately $18,400. Scheduled bond principal maturities arc as follows: 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter 
$ 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 2,695,000 $ 3,245,000 

Under provisions of the indenture, the Authority has the option to redeem remaining outstanding bonds in whole at any time on or afcr August I, 2005 from available funds at an initial redemption price of 102% of par and subsequontly at prices declining to par. The bonds are collateralized by the income derived from the mortgage loans and the funds and accounts held under or pledged to the program pursuant to the mdcnture. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
The Consolidated Sales Tax Agency Fund accounts for the collection of a two and one-half cent City sales and use tax and the distribution of this tax to other funds of the City. This fund also accounts for the collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board, Bossier Parish Police Jury, Bossier Parish Sheriff, and various municipalities within the parish. For financial reporting purposes, sales taxes are recorded as revenue in the individual funds which account for operations or projects for which the taxes were levied and as approved for expenditure by ordinance of the Council. The original one-cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in the administration and collection of sales taxes. Scheduled payments are made on a monthly basis into the Sales Tax Bond and Interest Sinking Funds for debt service requirements. After these payments, the amount, if any, up to une-half of the total monthly sales tax revenues (net of collection expense) are payable to the General Fund for Fire and Police Department operations and maintenance. The ~rnsining amount, if any, is payable to the Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund. A half-cent sales tax was approved by the voters in 1982. This revenue, net of expenses incurred in collecting the tax, is to be paid to the Firemen's and Policemen's Pension and Relief Funds to liquidate the onfunded liabilities of the plans over 30 years. The remaining amount, if any, is payable to the General Fund for salaries of police, fire, and other City employees. In 1987, a half-cant sales tax was approved by the voters. The additional revenue, net of expenses incurred in collecting the tax, is to be used for retirement of principal and payment of interest on sales tax bonds issued for the design and construction of a parkway adjacent to the Red River. During 2002, the voters approved a rededication of sales tax revenues whereby any amounts in excess of debt service requirements are payable for the purpose of operating and maintaining fire, police, and other departments of the City and for previously authorized purposes which would include payments to the Parkway Capital Projects Fund. In 1991, an additional half-cent sales tax was approved by the voters for the purposes of constructing and operating two new fire stations and a training facility, operating and maintaining the City jail and municipal buildings, maintaining and upgrading streets and drainage, and for salaries for personnel other than firemen and policemen. The cost associated with collecting and distributing the sales tax is funded by the City and the Bossier Parish School Board. The two entities fund the sales tax departmental expenditures on a pro rata basis. The various municipalities are charged a 1% commission on sales tax collected and distributed. The amounts recorded as sales tax revenue in the various funds are net of operating expenses of the sales tax department and includes other miscellaneous revenues related to the operation of the department and the collection of the tax. 
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(8) Defined Benefit Pension Plans The City administers three defined benefit pension plans: the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Firemen's Fund), the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Policemen's Fund) and the Bossier Medical Center Employees' Pension Fund (BMC Fund). A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Accounting- The three City administered pension plans' financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which employees provide services to the entity. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Method Used to Value Investments - Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. B. Concentration of Investments The Firemen's Fund and Policemen's Fund had no investments in any one organization representing 5% or more of the fund balanea rcserved for employees' pension benefits except for obligations of the federal government and its agencies. The BMC Fund had all of its investments in a bank money market fund. There are no investments in loans to or leases with parties related to the pension plans. C. Plan Descriptions and Contribution Information Membership of each plan consisted of the following at December 3 l, 2003: Firemen's Fund Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits Current employees: Vested Nonvcsted Total 

97 2 
Polieemen's Fund 55 
55 

Administrative costs of the Firemen's Fund, Policemen's Fund and BMC Fund are financed through the plan revenues. These plans do not have any legally required reserves. In connection with the sale of the hospital assets, the Bossier Medical Center's Board of Directors authorized termination of the BMC Fund effective June 30, 1999. 
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FJremen's Pension and Relief Fund (Firemen's Fund) Plan Deserlption - The Firemen's Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all members oftbe City's Fire DepOt employed by the City before January 1, 1980. All firemen employed by the City on or after January 1, 1980 must join the Firefighter's Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. Pension Benefits - Employees with 20 years of service are eligible to receive monthly retirement benefits. These benefits are equal to two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, .as defmad. The beneficiary receives an additional amount equal to one (1) percent of such salary for each year of service after the member has reached the age of 50 years and has served 20 years, provided that the maximum benefit shall not exceed seventy-five (75) percent of the salary. Benefits can only be paid out monthly and employee and employer contributions are forfeited upon termination of an emphiyee without the required length of service. Death and Disability Benefits - If an active employee or an employee eligible for or receiving benefits shall die from any cause, a monthly benefit shall be paid to the member's surviving spouse and children. The spouse, while malaining unmarried, Shall receive fifty (50) percent of the eligible benefits to which the deceased member would be entitled. Each surviving minor child under the age of eighteen (18) years shall receive twenty-four (24) percent of said benefits until the age of eighteen (18) or until married, whichever is sooner. If there is no widow, but there are children, each child receives thirty 00) percent until age eighteen (18) years or until married, whichever is sooner. These amounts paid to the family of the deceased will not exceed two-thirds (2/3) of the member's salary. If an active employee becomes disabled by reason of serving the department, he shall receive monthly a sum which, with the benefits from the Workmen's Compensation Act, shall be equal to seventy-five (75) percent of the montldy salary of the active member holding the position corresponding to that held hy the beneficiary at the time he became disabled. The benefits shall continue as long as the disability shall continue or until he becomes eligible for retirement on a servxce basis, whichever is sooner. If an active member with at least ten years of service becomes disabled by reason of causes not arising or developing directly from employment, with certain exceptions, he shall receive monthly a sum equal to one-third (1/3) of the monthly salary of the active member holding the position corresponding to that held by the beneficiary at the time he became disabled, plus an additional two (2) percent of such salary for each year of active service rendered over five years. The maximum benefit shall not exceed two-thirds (2/3) of the monthly salary of the active member holding the position corresponding to that held by the beneficiary at the time he became disabled. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Deferred Retirement Option Plan - The Firemen's Fund provides for a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of creditable service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to defer receipt of these benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable bad the member elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance will be paid into the DROP account. Upon tern~nation of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, the monthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP account during the period of participation begin being paid to the retiree. The participant may cleet to receive payment in the form ofnne lump sum or an annuity based upon the account balance. Funding Sources - The Plan is funded from the following sources, as established and may be amended by City ordinance: ~ Proceeds from the City's portion of the State of Louisiana 2% Fire Insurance Tax Account. * The sale of condetmlcd property owned and used by the Five Department. * Five percent of the salaries of all employees of the Fire Department who are eligible for participation in the Firemcn's Plan. *, A matching five percent of employees' salaries paid by the General Fund. ~ Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit, if any. ~ Income from investments owned by the Fivemen's Plan. * Amounts from the sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a period not to exceed 30 years, Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - A pension liability at transition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and equaled zero bcfove and after transition. The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Firemen's Fund for the current year were as follows: Annual required contribution Interest Annual pension cost Contributions made Increase in net pension obligation Net pension obligation beginning of year Net pension obligation end of year 

5,144,080 7.463 5,151,543 4,300,156 851,387 87.611 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions included: (a) 6.5% investment rate of return, compounded annually, including inflation of 3.25%, Co) projected salary increases of 4.5%, including inflation of 3.25%, (e) cost of living adjustments of 3.25%, and (d) amortization method of level percentage of payroll over 9 year closed period. The actuarial value of assets is based upon fair value. 

Fiscal year ended: 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 

Three-Year Trend Information 
Annual pension cost $ 4,007,176 4,086,893 5,151,543 

Percentage of annual pension cost contributed 
101% 102% 84% 

Net pension asset (obligation) ( 184,435) (g7,611) (938,998) The Firemen's Fond issues a publicly available financial report that includes required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Mr. Charles E. Glover, Director of Finance, City of Bossier City, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171-5337. Polieemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Polleemen's Fund) Plan Description - The Policemen's Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers a limited number of members of the City's Police Department not covered under the Municipal Police Employee Retirement System of Louisiana. All policemen employed on or after September 9, 1977 must join the Municipal Police Employee Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. Pension Benefits - Employees with 20 years of service or employees with 18 consecutive years of service and that have reached 65 years of age are eligible for monthly retirement benefits. These benefits shall be two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, as defined, but not less than $100 per month. Benefits can only be paid monthly and employee contributions are forfeited upon termination of an employee without the required length of service. The Policemen's Plan provides for a joint and survivor benefit option. This option gives the recipient the choice of reducing the amount of retirement drawn and increases amounts paid to survivors upon death. This option is actuarially equivalent to the original service retirement benefit. Benefits paid, regardless of option, remains at two-thirds (2/3) of monthly salary, but not less than $100 per month. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Deferred Retirement Option Plan - The Policemen's Plan provides for a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of creditable service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to defer receipt of these benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable had the member elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance will be paid into the DROP account. Upon termination of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, the monthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP account during the period of participation will begin being paid to the retiree. The participant may elect to receive payment in the form of no more than two payments per year in inercments of at least $1,000 or an annuity based upon the account balance. Death and Disability Benefits - All participants are either retired or under the DROP program. Therefore, if a member dies while receiving a pension and leaves a child or children under eighteen years of age, a widow, or a dependent mother; these survivors should be paid as follows: dependent mother, one hundred dollars per month; widow, survivor benefits based upon the election of the participant; each child under eighteen years of age or who is attending college, one hundred fifty dollars per month, regardless of the number of children. Funding Sources - The Policemen's Fund is funded from the following sources, as established by City ordinance: ~ Twenty percent of all amounts collected for City Court fines. * Ten percent of all funds collected by the City for taxes, licenses, or permits for the sale of alcoholic beverages. ~ Six percent of the salaries of all employees of the Police Department who are eligible for participation in the Policemen's Plan. ~ Income from investments owned by the Policemen's Plan. ~ Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit of the prior year, if any. t Amounts from the 1982 sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a period not to exceed 30 years. 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset - A pension liability at transition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and equaled zero before and after transition. The City's annual pension cost and net pension asset to the Policeman's Fund for the current year were as follows: Annual required contribution Interest Annual pension cost Contributions made Decrease in net pension asset Net pension asset beginning of year Net pension asset end of year 

$ 2,239,583 (69,525) 2,170,058 1.963.412 (206,646) 854,985 $ 648,339 The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions included: (a) 6.5% investment rote of ~turn, compounded annually, including inflation of 3.25% (b) cost of living adjustments of 3.25%, and (c) amortization method of level percentage of payroll over 9 year closed period. The actuarial value of assets is based upon fair value. 

Fi~alye~ended: 1~31~1 1~31/02 1~31~3 

Three-YearTrend Information Percentage of annual Annual pension cost $ 1,750,461 1,754,784 2,170,058 
pension cost contributed 112% 112% 90% 

Net pension asset 648,357 854,985 648,339 The Policemen's Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Mr. Charles E. Glover, Director of Finance, City of Bossier City, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171-5337. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Bossier Medical Center Employees' Pension Fund 01MC Fund) Termination - In connection with the sale of the hospital assets, the Bossier Medical Center's Board of Directors authorized termination of the Bossier Medical Center plan effective June 30, 1999 and all benefit accruals ceased on June 30, 1999. The plan has sufficient assets to fund the termination liability, and any excess assets will be distributed among active participants. A determination letter regarding termination dated March 25, 2000 was received from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Under the termination plan, $6,525,286 of plan assets was distributed to 401 plan participants pr/or to 2003. In 2003, $73,170 was remitted to the City for onlocated participants. At December 31, 2003, there were two participants to be paid out in 2004. Because the plan was terminated there were no required contributions for 2003. Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Benefit Plans - Public Employee Retirement Systems Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 0gRS) Plan Description - The City contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Board of Trustees of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. ERS covers substantially all employees of the City not covered by the fire, police and Bossier Medical Center pension plans. Benefits are established and may be amended by State statutes. The ElLS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees, Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 or by calling 504-925--4810. Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 5% of their annual compensation and the City is required to contribute 7.75% of annual compensation. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by State statute. The City's contributions to ERS for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $761,401, $460,403, and $369,845, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The plan's net pension obligation was zero at December 3 I, 2003. The City's pension liability at transition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 and equaled zero before and after transition. 
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CITY OF BOSS~R CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MILERS) 

The City's pension liability at transition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 and equaled zero before and after transition. Statewlde Flreflghters' Retirement System (SFRS) Plan Description - The City contributes to the Statewide Firefighters' Retirement System Pension Plan, a cost-sharing nmltiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the SFRS. SFRS covers firefighters employed by any municipality, parish, or fire protection district of the State of Loutsiana under the provisions of Lottisiana Revised Statutes 11:2251 through 2269 effective January 1, 1980. Benefits are established and may be amended by State statutes. The SFRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees, Firefighters' Retirement System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808-4136 or by calling 504-925-4060. Funding Policy - The eonaibution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the SFRS Board of Trustees. The SFRS notified the City in the first quarter of 2003 that the employer contribution rate would change effective July 1, 2003 from 9% to 25.25%. On June 26, 2003, the SFRS informed the City that House Bill 353 had passed and when signed would result in the employer contribution rate being lowered from 25.25% to approximately 21% effective July 1, 2003. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
The City joined several other cities in a lawsuit in an attempt to have the State and possibly the frrefighters share in the increased costs, and to look into the operation of the fund and other matters. On .luly 25, 2003, the state court issued a temporary order stating that the SFRS cannot demand employer contributions in excess of 9% until the suit is settled. On November 20, 2003, the state court ruled that the SFRS is permanently enjoined from collecting an amount in excess of the 9% employer rate from any employer whose employees are members of the SFRS. The State of Louisiana and the SFRS have appealed to the State Supreme Court and the outcome is pending. A tentative court'date has been set for April 13, 2004. The City continued to contribute 9% to the SFRS throughout 2003. Plan members are required to contribute 9% of their annual compensation and as discussed above, the City is required to contribute 9OA of annual compensation, excluding overtime but including State supplemental pay. The City's contributions to SFRS for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $717,185, $579,838, and $544,813, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The plan's net pension obligation was zero at December 3 !, 2003. The City's pension liability at transition was deternnned in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 and equaled zero before and aiter transition. (9) Lease Commitments The City has commitments under several operating lease agreements for equipment, land, and a water supply reservoir. With the exception of the water supply reservoir, these lease agreements are cancelable by the City at any time. City management does feel, however, that such leases will generally be renewed or replaced each year. The City's lease agreement for the water supply reservoir calls for fixed annual payments of $1,000 for the next 21 years. Total rental expense for 2003 for all City operating leases was $478,597 (10) Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures (.4) Interfund Receivables and Payables Interf~nd balances at December 31, 2003 were as follows: 
DUE FROM 

DUE TO Noamajor Nonmajor governmental business-type funds funds Total Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund $ 63,481 757,042 820,523 All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (I) interfand goods and serwces are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
(B) Transfers Transfers for the year ended December 31, 2003 were as follows: 

TRANSFERS IN 
TRANSFERS OUT Riverboat Riverboat Public Gaming Arena Gaming Health and Spedal Special Capital Safety Nonma~or Nonmajor General Revenue Revenue Prejects permanent governmental buslneut-tylg Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund activities activities General Fund $ -- 1,950,0(3~ Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund -- -- Public Health and Safety Permanent Fund -- -- Wate~ and Sewenge Enterl~se Fund -- -- Nonmajor 8overnmantal activities 405,000 -- Nonmajor business-t,jpe activities -- -- 

-- -- 1,100,000 3,107,818 -- 6,157,818 -- 2,000,000 -- 2,000,000 
1,000 3,520,000 
-- 130,270 

374,499 
-- 2,000,000 -- 2,000,000 -- 374,499 21,000 5.932,212 -- 130,270 $ 405 000 1,950,~0 1,000 71650,270 | ,100,000 5,367,529 12~ ,000 16,594,799 Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in otber funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

In 2003, the Public Safety Pension Reserve fund was created to account for funds reserved for the potential liability that may have to be paid due to the increase of the State Firefighters Pension Fund and the State Police Retirement Fund. 

(Continued) 



(D) Deficit Fund Equity 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 3 I, 2003 
The Emergency Medical Services Fund had a deficit net asset balance of $14,175 as of December 31, 2003. The Emergency Medical Services Fund expenses exceeded revenues creating an operating deficit for 2003 of $433,466. The council passed an ordinance in 2003 which approves discontinuing the operations of the Emergency Medical Services Fund as an enterprise fund effective December 31, 2003 and Emergency Medical Services will be maintained in the General Fund for 2004. The Insurance Fund had a deficit net asset balance of $4,864 as of December 31, 2003. The Insurance Fund had a deficit for the year ended 2003 due to higher than expected medical insurance costs. The City will alleviate this deficit in 2004 through additional contributions from the City. (11) Federal and State Financial Assistance Federal and State governmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding to finance housing, employment, and construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the corranunity. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General and Special Revenue Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under the related grant. The grants normally specify the purpose for which the funds may be used and are audited annually under the single audit as mandated by the Single Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations. Supplementary salary payments are made by the State to certain groups of employees. The City is not legally responsible for these salaries. Therefore, the basis for recogmzing the revenue and expenditure payments is the actual contribution from the State. For 2003, the State paid supplemental salaries to the following groups of employees: Fire Department employees, $642,530; Police Department emplo~'ees, $561,730; and City Marshal employees (a component unit), $22,050. (12) Commitments and Contingencies Construction Projects There are certain construction projects in progress at December 31, 2003. The City has entered into an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality whereby the department agrees to provide the City with a low interest loan to provide for engineering and construction of odor control improvements at the Red River Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Northeast Wastewater Treatment Plant estimated to cost approximately $3.5 million. In 2002, the City issued $12,245,000 in utility revenue bonds for the purpose of providing additions and improvements to the utility system. The City also entered into a contract with the State of Louisiana Departn~nt of Transportation and Development to provide all services necessary to design, acquire right of way, relocate utilities, and construct the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway Interchange at State Route LA 3032 in Bossier Parish. The City paid $833,000 in 2001 and $700,000 in 2003, which represents a preliminary estimate of costs to purchase remaining right of way and relocate utilities. The total estimate to construct the interchange is $3.3 million, which will be paid by the City. The City has budgeted to spond approximately $1.65 million in 2004 on this project. The City is planning to construct a multi-million dollar public recreation riverwalk along a portion of the Red River. In conjunction with this project, the City is also planning to construct new infrastructure consisting of streets, drainage, utilities, and parking structures. The City has purchased land for this project. (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2003 
Approximately $5.6 million was expended as of December 31,2001 and approximately $4.1 million was expanded in 2002. In 2002, the City issued $29,260,000 in public improvement sales tax bonds for the purpose of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, extending, or improving public works. The City intends to use these funds for capital improvements for riverfront and downtown development. In 2003, the City spent approximately $6.3 million for development of the Riverwalk project which included construction of a multi-level parking garage, other parking improvements for a new major retail outlet, and a new seawall along the riverfront. In 2004, the City budgeted approximately $23.5 million in public improvement sales tax bonds and $3.3 millinn in riverboat gaming funds related to the Riverwalk project. The projected completion date for the City's share of the Riverwalk project should be in the fall of 2004. During 2001, the City issued $4.88 million in revenue bonds for the purpose of making capital improvements to Traffic Street and for other riverfront and downtown development. To date, the City has spent $5.2 million for purchase of right of way and construction costs related to the Traffic Street widening project. The City has also budgeted approximately $5.7 million in riverboat gaming funds for the Traffic Street construction and purchase of right of way in 2004. The City purchased right of way in 2004 for the purpose of constructing the Benton Road overpass. The City has also appropriated $7.3 million of riverboat gaming funds in 2004 fur the Benton Road Overpass project. 
According to existing legislative acts of the State of Louisiana, the City is required to reimburse the Fireman's Pension and Relief Fund and the Polieernen's Pension and Relief Fund for operating deficits that may occur in any fiscal year. 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters. The Insurance and Liability Insurance Funds are used to account for self-insured activities involving workmen's compensation coverage, group dental coverage, and the self-insured retention for automobile, general liability, and property claims. Payments are made from the operating funds to the Insurance Fund and the Liability Insurance Fund which are accounted for as internal service funds. Paymanta are accounted for as revenues by the receiving fund and expenditures/expense by the paying funds. The City maintains stop-loss coverage with an insurance company of $250,000 per occurrence for wurkmen's compensation coverage with an aggregate limit of $1,000,000. Employee life insurance premiums are also paid from the Insurance Fund. Liability policies are maintained by the City with third-party insurance carriers for its automobile, general liability, and property damage exposures. These policies are subject to a $1,000,000 per occurrence limit with a $100,000 per occurrence retention for claims involving third parties. The City maintained property insurance during 2003 on approximately $95 million in City property, subject to a $100,000 per occurrence retention for property claims. The maximum cumulative amount of self-insured retentions related to automobile, general liability, and property claims is $700,000. There were no reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. No claims exceeded the City's insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 3 I, 2003 
A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the self-insurance funds is as follows: 
Insurance Fund: 2002 $ 2003 Liability Insurance Fond: 2002 $ 2003 

Accrued claims Januar~ 1 
35,000 45,578 
793,574 793,574 

Claims incurred 
226,635 270,478 
1,078,726 1,224,830 

Claims puid 
216,057 265,478 
1,078,726 1,168,928 

Accrued claims December 31 
45,578 50,578 
793,574 849:76 

The City is defendant m a number of legal actions, most of which are partially covered by insurance. There are certain suits, including employee discrimination and civil fights violations suits, which are in the early stages of discovery and for which the availability of insurance coverage or estimates of the ultimate liability of the City cannot be determined. Resolution of some of these cases could involve liability to the City in excess of insurance limits if the courts find in favor of the various plaintiffs. The City evaluates the existing litigation and accrues appropriate amounts in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards No. 5 as liabilities become probable and can be estimated. It is the policy of the City to pay uninsured judgments against the City on a current basis from the excess of revenues over expenditures. Grant Disallowances The City participates in federally assisted grant programs, principally Connnunity Development Block Grant, and various construction grants. These programs are subject to program compliance audits onder the Single Audit Act. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. City management believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. Revenues From the State of Louisiana The General Fund receives various revenues from the State of Louisiana including beer tax, and traffic signalization revenues. The continuation of these revenues at these amounts is contingent on a variety of factors at the state level. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Required Supplementary Information Year ended December 3 l, 2003 (uuaudited) 
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was dct~mincd as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional mfommtien as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 
Valuation date Actuarial cost method Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period Asset valuation method Actuarial assumptions: Investment rate of return 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Firemen's Fund 
Entry age normal cost 

Level percentage Level percentage 9 years - closed 9 years - closed Fair value 
6.50% 4.50% 
3.25% 2.65% 

Fair value 
6.50% N/A 
3.25% 3.40% 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis Year ended December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 

Revenues: Taxes: Sales, net Ad valorem Utility Telephone Franchise: Cable television Chain store Taxi 
Licenses and pcnuits Intergovemmcntal: Grants State and parish revenues: Supplemental pay Beer tax Special funds fi-om State of Louisiana 
Fines and penalties Racing Commission - Louisiana Downs Video poker Interest Misce]la~eons: Payment in lieu of taxes - Federal Housing Authority Parks and recreation Engineering fees Enterprise funds and Civic Center Fund pro rata share of general and administrative expenses Police Depara'aant revenues Other income Total miscellaneous Total revenues 

Original and final budget 
11,109,978 8,467,550 1,000,000 260,000 395,000 61,000 __ 6~000 21fl99~528 1,974,000 

Actual on a budgetary basis 
11,555,466 8,459,861 1,189,796 200,467 454,673 60,465 6,720 21,927,44,8 2,540,673 

Variance with final budget positive (negative) 
445,488 (7,689) 189,796 (59,533) 59,673 (535) 720 627,920 566,673 

208,000 129,658 (78,342) 

1,050,000 430,000 485,000 75,000 
44,000 175,000 I0,000 

1,226,310 104,702 179~512 1~640~1~2 1,O77,117 412,977 562,293 38,169 
48,923 174,986 79,863 
417,500 300,694 349,879 1~371~845 29~570,704 

115,230 (5,298) (1,488) 30.102 27,117 (17,023) 77,293 (3~831) 
4,923 (14) 69,863 
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Expenditures: Current: 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis Year ended December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 

General government: Administration Municipal building Finance City garage Traffic engineering and safety Purchasing Engineering Personnel Permils and inspeGtiom City attorney Public works City Council Community development Animal control Information services Payments to other governmental agencies Public safety Fire Police 
Highways and streets Culture and recreation City Court and Marshal: City Court Marshal's office 
Total expenditures Excess of expenditures over revenues Other financing sources (uses): Transfers in Transfers out Transfer to component unit Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures end other uses Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of yenr 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Original and final ~ budget 
491,927 1,384,750 814,393 728,542 784,065 338,564 752,935 373,213 622,260 287,130 250,433 220,518 391,277 398,619 633,598 I ~037,474 
9,595,006 I I t946~851 21,541,857 1,232,525 1,613,586 

3,050,000 (145,7~0) 2,904,290 
0,970,196) 5,912,041 $ I r941 r845 

ActUal on n budgetary basis 
509,132 1,355,474 789,355 730,168 821,958 335,242 679,1!9 380,357 713,994 291,967 231,263 256,664 204,221 400,950 633,355 1,088,796 9,422,015 9,393,566 11~689~564 21,083,130 1,221,209 1,833,789 

6,157,818 (405,000) (145,710) 5,607,108 , 

Variance with final budget positive (negative) 
(17,205) 29,276 25,038 (1,626) (37,893) 3,322 73,816 (7,144) (91,734) (4,837) 19,170 (36,146) 187,056 (2,331) 243 (51~322) 87~683 201,440 257~287 458,727 11,316 (220,203) (10,482) (4o,077) (50,559) 286~964 1,637,560 3,107,818 (4O5,000) 2~02,818 
~340,378 



Revenues: Direct event income Ancillary income Advertising Luxury box income Other income Total revenues 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Arena Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Year ended December 31, 2003 (nnaudited) 

Expenditures - current- culture and recreation: Executive Finance Operations Marketing Box office Facility overhead Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing uses - Wansfers out Fund balance, beginning of year Fund balance, end of year 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Original and final .. budget 
371,079 925,331 992,330 535,760 254~470 3~078~970 
210,406 186,349 1,251,461 195,005 109,760 846~830 

Actual 227,982 846,701 917,517 518,681 291,287 2,802,168 
233,432 194,607 1,174,139 188,942 I I 1,258 949.183 

Variance with final budget positive (negative) (143,097) (78,630) (74,813) (17,079) 36,817 _ (276,802) (23,026) (8,258) 77,322 6,063 (1,498) (102~353) 2,7991811,,. 2~851,561 (51,750) 
279,159 (49,393) (I,OO0) 180,140 180~140 129347 

(328,552) (I,000) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 
Budget and Budgetary Accounting The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: (1) Prior to October 15, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. (2) A public hearing is then enndueted, aiter proper official journal notification, to obtain taxpayer comments. (3) Prior to December 15, the budget is legally anacted through passage of an ordinance (4) The budget ordinance is structured such that revenues are budgeted by source, and appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of expenditure. The City Charter provides that expenditu~.es may not legally exceed appropriations on a departmental basis aRer considering fund surpluses or deficits. The Council may revise or amend the budget at its discretion during legally convened sessions. Management may amend the budget only below the department level. For the year ended December 31, 2003, amendments were made to the budget for Hotel Motel Taxes and Fire Improvements and Operations. These amendments were to increase the budget for capital outlay for anticipated projects in 2003. (5) Comparison of budgeted and actual amounts as shown in the accompanying fmancial statements includes the General Fund and those special revenue funds which are included in the annual operating budget (Civic Center, Hotel Motel Taxes, Fire Improvements and Operations, Jail and Municipal Buildings, Streets and Drainage, and Arena). Annual operating budgets are not prepared for the State and Federal Grant, Court Witness Fee, and Riverboat Gaming special revenue funds, but rather these funds are budgeted on a project basis. The capital budget ordinances which encompass the capital projects funds present cumulative as opposed to annual budget amounts and thus budget and actual comparisons are not reported in the accompanying financial statements for these funds. Budgetary control for the debt service funds is achieved through general bond indenture provisions. (6) All budgets are adopted on a basis substantially consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that payments to the Firemen's and Policemen's Pension Funds arc not budgeted in the General Fund and administrative expenditures allocated to the State and Federal Grant special revenue fund are budgeted in the General Fund. App~apriations which are not expended lapse at year end, except appropriations for capital improvements, which do not lapse until the purpose of the appropriation has been accomplished or abandoned. (7) The City is legally required to prepare annual operating budgets for the Department of Water and Sewerage, Sanitation, and the Emergency Medical Services. The City is not, however, required to present an actual-to-budget comparison for the enterprise funds. Budgets are not prepared for the internal service funds. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 
Reconciliation of the Budgetary Basis and the GAAP Basis Adjustments necessary to convert the expenditures at the end of the year on the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis are as follows: 
Budgetary basis expenses Administrative costs of State and Federal Grant ~ Special Revenue Fund Sales taxes dedicated to Fircmen's and Policemen's Pension and Relief Funds Payments to component units GAAP basis expenses Excess of Expenditures Over Budget - Major Funds 

General Fund $ 34,807,630 (129,658) 5,933,946 145.710 
For those funds for which a budget to actual comparison was made, actual expenditures on a budgetary basis exceeded budgeted expenditures on a line item basis as follows: 

Fund General Fund: General government: Administration $ City garage Traffic engineering and safety Personnel Permits and inspections City Attorney City Council Animal control Payments to other government agencies Culture and recreation City Court Marshal's office Arena fund 

491,927 728,542 784,065 373,213 622,260 287,130 229518 398,619 997A74 !,613,586 580,778 616,150 2,799,811 
75 

Actual on a budgetary basis 
509,132 730,168 821,958 380,357 713,994 291,967 256,664 400,950 1~88,796 1,833,789 591,260 656,227 2,851,561 

Negative valance 
(17,205) (I,626) 07,893) (7,144) (91,734) (4,837) (36,146) (2,331) (91,322) (220,203) (10,482) (40,077) (51,750) 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 
The unfavorable variance in permits and inspections is due to the transfer of three additional personnel into the department from Cmrununity Development, The unfavorable variance in payments to other government agencies is due to an additional payment to the Barksdale Forward project that was applicable to the prior year and an additional amount was paid to the Clean City Committee for additional funding. Also a higher than projected amount was paid to the Northwest Council of Goverrunents. The unfavorable variance in culture and recreation is due to a payment to settle a lawsuit against the City related to recreation. 

76 



COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds State and Federal Grant- This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of funds received under the Community Development Block Grant and other grant programs. Court Witness Fee - This fund accounts for the proceeds of a special case charge on criminal matters. The revenues generated are dedicated to the payment of a special witness fee to law officers who are called to testify in City Court. Civic Center - This fund accounts for the revenues received and operating expenses incurred in the operations oftbe City's Civic Center Complex, Hotel Motel Taxes - This fund accounts for the revenues received from taxes levied on the occupancy of hotel/motel rooms and related facilities. The revenues can only be used for riverboat/downtown development and the operation and maintenance of the civic center and multi-purpose arena. Fire Improvements and Operations - This fund accounts for the revenues received and operating expenses incurred in the construction and operation of two new fire stations and a new training facility. 
Jail and Municipal Buildings - This fund accounts for the revenues received and the operating expenses incurred to operate and maintain the City Jail in aeeordanee with Federally Mandated Standards and to operate and maintain City buildings. Streets and Drainage - This fund accounts for the revenues received and the operating expenses incurred in maintaining and upgrading streets and drainage. Public Safety Pension Reserve - This fund accounts for funds reserved for the potential liability that may need to be paid due to the increase of contribution requirements of the State Firefighters Retirement System and the State Police Retirement System. 



Debt Service Funds 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund - Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs of the 1979, 1991, 1993, 1998, and 2002 bond series. Parkway Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund - Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, end related costs of the 1997 and 2001 bond series. Hotel Motel Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund - Used to account for the accumulation of resources fur, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs of the 2001 bond series. 

Capital Projects Funds Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with street improvements, the Shed Road projects, and the Golden West project and is funded by the excess one-half cent sales tax after payment of debt service sales tax revenue bond issues and interest earned. Parkway Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for miscellaneous capital expenditures as budgeted by the City Council and is funded by the excess one-half cent sales tax after payment of debt service on the Parkway Bond Issue end interest earned. Traffic Street Bond Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for the capital improvements associated with riverfront and downtown development and is funded by the 2001 bond proceeds end interest earned. Special Project Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with the completion of the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway and is funded with the refunding of the 1979 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bond Issue. No more funds will be Iransferred into this fund. Land Acquisition Fund - This fund is used to account for special land purchases end sales not associated with bond issue related expenditures. 
Equipment Replacement Fund - This fund is used to account for purchases and sales of various equipment not associated with bond issue related expenditures. 



Assets Assets: Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables, net Taxes- other A.ccmed interest Due from other funds Due from other governmental units Total assets Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities: Accounts payable Due to other funds Deferred revenue Total liabilities Fund balances: Reserved: Debt sexvice Encumbrances Unreserved: Designated for subsequent year's expandituro Undesignated Total fund balances Total liabilities and fund balances 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet - By Fund Type Governmental Activities December 31, 2003 

$ 
Spaeial Reveuoe Funds 
703,297 9,1 t 8,036 1,618,683 92,210 111~616 $ 11,643,842 
395,358 63,481 715,545 1,174,384 
,342,186 

Debt Service Funds 628,204 8,175,883 926,876 82~86 

Capital projects Funds 704,831 8,456,037 9~566 85,830 
9,813,949 9,344,264 

388,434 

2,144,702 
6,811,128 

2,036,332 25,74~956 2,643,125 26L026 111,616 30,802,055 
784,756 63,481 715,545 1,563382 
9~t23~S 3,486,888 
6,811,128 9,127,272 29,238,273 

$ I 1,643,842 9,813,949 ~ 9,344,264 ,, 30,802,055 
See eceomp~ying no~s to basic financial stzteraants. 



Revenues~ Taxes ltuergovernmeatal Fees and rentals Fines and penalties Investment earnings Miscellananus 
Expenditures: Coo'eat: General goveroraeat Culture and recreation City Court and Marshal Capital outlay Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Governmental Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - By Fund Type Governmental Activities Year ended December 31, 2003 

Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources (uses): Refunding bond issued Payment to refunded bond escrow agent Transfers in, Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) Net change in fund balances Fund balances at beginning of year Fund balances at end of year 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Special Revenue Funds 
4,295,143 2,683,017 239,793 16,915 206,042 22,254 7.463.164 
888,141 711,059 25,851 2,019,643 

Debt Servke Funds 
7,952,493 
184)02 7.128 

3,965,000 4,183,872 

Capital Projects Funds 
380,456 1,007,365 

5,583,166 

3,818,470 (4,349) 5,157,304 (5,157,304) 591,493 (594,719) (3,226) 

(3.971,530) 
3,579,261 (374,500) 3,204,761 

12,628,092 3,690,382 239,793 16,915 529~91 114,550 17,219,323 
888,141 711,059 25,851 7~02,809 

(157,409) 5,157,304 (5,157,304) 5,932,212 (5,367,529) 564.683 81,618 (7,575) (766,769) 407,274 
$ 10,469.458 9 812 985 . 8.955,830 29,238,273 







Assets Cash and cash equivalents Investments Accounts receivable - taxes Accrued interest To~las~m 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Debt Service Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 2003 

Liabilities and Fund Balances Accounts payable Fund balances - reserved for debt service 

Parkway Sales Sales Tax Tax Bond Bond Sinking Sinking and and Reserve Reserve Fund Fund $ 415,382 5,411,375 700,179 54z926 $ 6r581~862 
159,412 2,076,055 226,697 21~072 2,483~236 

Hotel Motel Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund 53,410 688,453 6T988 748,851 
~8,2~ 8,175,883 ~6,8~ 82,986 9~813~949 

964 -- -- 964 6~580~898 21483,236 748,851 9,812,985 Total liabilities and fund balance $ 6~581~862 2~483,236 748,851 9813,949 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Debt Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Year ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues: Sales taxes, net Investment earnings Miscellaneous other income Total revenues Expenditures - debt service: Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources (uses): Refunding bond issued Payment to refunded bond escrow agent Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) Net change in fund balances Fund balances at the beginning of year F'~und balances at the end of year 

Parkway Sales Sales Tax Tax Bond Bond Sinking Sinking and and Reserve Reserve Fund Fund 
6,006,961 125,246 7.128 1,945,532 45,265 

Hotel Motel Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund Total 
14,391 7,952,493 184,902 7.128 

2,340,000 3,345~738 1,190,000 681.141 435,000 156~993 3,965,000 4fl83~872 5,685,738 1~871~141 591,993 8,148~872 
453,597 
5,157,304 (5,157,304) 

119,656 (577,602) (4,349) -- 5,157,304 -- (5,157,304) 591,493 591,493 
(522~724) (69,127) 6~650,025 $ 6~580~898 

See accompanying notes to basic fmancial statements. 

(3,226) (7,575) 9r820~560 9~812,985 
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Sanitation - Operated as a self-sustaining service of the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City sanitation services. Emergency Medical Services - Operated as a self-sustaining service of the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City with emergency medical services. 



 

Assets Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents Investments 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Net Assets December 31, 2003 

Accounts receivable - customers Less allowance for doubtful accounts 
Accrued interest receivable Others accounts receivable Total current assets Capital a/sets: Equipment Less accumulated depreciation Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation Total assets 
Current liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued expanses Compensated absences Due to other funds Total current liabilities Long-term liabilities - compensated absences Total liabilities Net assets: Invested in capital assets, net of deprecialion Unrestricted Total net assets 
Scc accompanying notes to basic fmaneial statements. 

Sanitation 
32,386 416,871 274,422 
Emergency Medical Services Total 
m 1,412,179 

1,242,519 (1fl98~943) 

32,386 416,871 1,686,601 

1,242,519 (1~198~943, 
43)576 ,, 43,576 731,324 945,274 1,676,598 

66,725 6,085 11,838 
84.648 5,131 89.779 
641,545 

8,285 52,723 89,462 757,042 
75,010 58,808 101,300 757.042 907,512 992,160 51~937 959.449 

43,576 (57,751) 
57.068 Ip049)228 
43,576 583.794 $ 641,545  (14,175) 627,37~  



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Entcrprise Funds Combining Statement'ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets Year ended December 31, 2003 

Operating revenues: Charges for services: Sanitation fees Ambulance fees 
Total operating revenues Operating exlx'nses: Personal services Supplies Utilities Rel~hS and ma/ntenance Contractual expenses 

Sanitation 
2,597,772 
2,597,772 75.784 

Emergency Medical Services Total 
-- 2,597,772 3~472~242 3~472~242 3,472,242 6,070,014 3,781 79,565 

367,374 92,582 3,425 12,545 1,791,684 
2,555,195 157,604 31,223 9.524 

2,922,569 250,186 34,648 22,069 1,791,684 



Cash flows from operating activities: Receipts from operations Payments to suppliers Payments to employees Other receipts 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nonmajor Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Cash Flows Year ended December 31, 2003 
Sanitation $ 2,598,908 ( 1,943,024) (361,132) 

Emergency Medical Services Total 3,336,484 (1,209,930) (2,668,804) 5,935,392 (3,152,954) (3,029,936) 68)337 532,980 601~3 i 7 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 363)089 (9)270) 353)819 Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities: Transfers in Transfers out Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities Net cash provided by investing activities: Purchases of invesUnents Interest received Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities Net increase m cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

(417,220) 8)545 
(408,675) (45,586) 77)972 $ 32,386 Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Operating income (loss) $ Depreciation and amortization Provision for bad debts (Increase) decrease in assets: Accounts receivable Other receivable Increase (decrease) in liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued expenses Due to other funds 

297,800 52,310 (51,174) (7,447) 65,358 6,242 

130,270 (121)ooo) 130,270 021,ooo) 

(442,736) 55,301 885,265 (I,021,023) (8,607) (22,667) 7,391 5371806 

(417,220) 8~545 
(4081675) (45,586) 77.972 32,386 
(144,936) 55,301 937,575 (1,072,197) (16,054) 42,691 13,633 537,806 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 363)089 (9)270) , 353,819 Noncash items: Change in fair value of investments See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 87 

(349) (349) 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Pension Trust Funds - The pension trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity. The pension trust funds reported in this section are the Firencn's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund. Agency Funds - The Consolidated Sales Tax Fund accounts for the collection of a two percent City sales and use tax and the .distribution of this tax to the various funds which account for operations and projects for which the tax was levied. This fund also accounts for the collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board and various municipalities within the parish. The Riverboat Gaming Agency Fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement of funda from the riverboats that the City receives and disburses to other local government agencies in accordance with the contractual provisions. 



 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Pension Trust Funds Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets I)eccrnt~r 31, 2003 

Cash and cash equivalents Investments, at fair value: U.S. treasury bonds and U.S. government and agency obligations Certificates of deposit 
Accrued interest receivable Other assets Total assets 

Firemen'$ Pension and ReHef Fund 
Polieemen's Pendon and Relief Fund 

Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund Total 1,052,727 622,163 19,854 1,694,744 
25,748,289 
25,748,289 149,991 100 

6,898,681 558r767 7:57,448 
32,646,970 558,767 33,205,737 149,991 I00 $ 26,951,107 8,079~611 19 854 35,050 572 

Fund balances reserved for employees' retirement system $ 26~951~107 8~079~611 19T854 35,050~572 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 



Additions Contributions from City: Sales taxes, net Fire insurance premiums Employer's contributions City Court fmes City liquor licenses 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Pension Trust Funds Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets December 31, 2003 
Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund 

Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
4, i 51,894 1,779,572 130,222 18,040 177,695 6~145 Total contributions 4~300p 156 1~963,412 Employee contn'butions Investment earnings Less investment expense Net investment earnings Total additions Deductions Pensions and benefits Administrative expenses Total deductions Change in net assets Net assets - beginning Net assets - ending 

18,040 972,379 182,657 (103,592) 868p787 (10,935) 171.722 5,186,983 2+135+134 
4,065,293 20~486 41085,779 1,101,204 25~849~903 $ 26,951~107 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

1,766,264 15.417 1~781+681 353,453 7~726,158 8r079~611 

Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund Total 

73,170 
73.170 

5,931A66 130,222 18,040 177,695 6,145 

(73,170) 1,381,487 93~024 19T854 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Fiduciary Funds Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds Year ended December 31, 2003 
Balance January 1, 2002 Consolidated Salce Tax Fund Assets Cash mid cash equivalents $ 1,289.888 Other receivable 1,032 Due from other funds 234,838 Due from Police~unn's Pension and Rdief Fund 26,767 Due from Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund 62,457 Total assets $ 1,614,982 Liabilities Accounts payable Dun to other funds Taxes paid under protest Refundable deposits Total expenditures 

Assets Cash and cash equivalents Llab01tla Due to other governmental units Total all AgencT Funds Am Cash and cash equivalents Other uceivabJe Due from other funds Due from Policcmen's Pension and Relief Fand Due from Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund Total assets Liabilities Accounts payable Due to other funds Taxes paid under protest Refundable deposits DUe to other governmental units Total expenditures 

$ 14,759 324,162 1,224,054 52.007 $ I ~614,982 
$ 

$ 1,289,888 1,032 234.838 26,767 62,457 $ 1~614t982 
$ 14,759 324,162 1,224,054 52,007 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

67,668.983 16,197 
67 685 180 
23,545,681 2,716.716 

67,531.670 15,657 234,838 26.767 62,457 67.871.389 
23,525,377 324,162 2,611,029 78~524 66,562 26,340,921 -- 26,527,130 

1,998 639 1,998,639 1~ .998,639 1~998,639 
69,667,622 16,197 
69,683 819 
23,545,681 2.716,716 78.524 1,998:639 28 339 560 

69,530,309 15,657 234.838 26,767 62,457 69~8701028 
23.525,377 324,162 2.611.029 66,562 1.998.639 28.525,769 

Balance January 1 2O03 
1,427,201 1,572 

1,427,201 1,572 
1,428,773 
35,063 1,329,741 63,969 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

The internal service funds are used to account for the costs of providing insurance coverage for the City. The City has two internal service funds. Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for contributions from City departments and withholdings from employee's payroll used to pay the costs of providing group dental coverage for City employees. Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for contributions from City departments for the payment of workrnen's compensation and liability insurance claims. 



Cash and cash equivalents Investments Prepaid items Total assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Internal Service Funds Combining Statement of Net Assets December 31, 2003 

Accounts payable Accrued claims Total liabilities Net assets - um~tricted Total liabilities and net assets 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Insurance Fund 18,807 38,018 
11,111 50~578 61,689 (4,864) 56,825 

Liability Insurance Fund Total 66,035 861,451 541~980 1.469.466 
30,605 849~476 880,081 589~385 1~469~66 

84,842 899,469 541,980 1,526,291 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Internal Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets Year ended December 3 l, 2003 
RfJvenues: Employers' cenm~ution~premiums Employees' contributions Refunds and reimbursements Total operating revenues Expenses: Claims Employee insurance premiums Other Total operating expenses Operating income {loss) Nonoperating revenues - investment earnings Change in net assets Net assets at beginning of year Net assets at end of year 
See accompanying notes to basic fmancial statements. 

Insurance Fund Liability Insurance Fund $ 261,518 2,144,639 193,998 2,406,157 193,998 577.771 
270,478 164,294 301742 465~514 (4,698) (174) (4,864) 

1,224,830 1,024,138 29.491 2~278~459 438,643 (11701) 436,942 

1,495,308 1,188,432 
2~743~973 433,953 (1,875) 432,078 

$ (4,864) 589,385 584,521 



Cash flows from operating activities: Receipts from operations Payments to suppliers Claims paid 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Internal Service Funds Combining Statement of Cash Flows Year ended December 31, 2003 
Insurance Fund 
$ 460,824 (213,321) (265,478) 

Liability Insurance Fund Total 2,717,102 (1,134,159) ( 1~ 168~928) 3,177,926 (x,347,4so) (I~434,406) Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . ~17~975) 414T015 396~040 Cash flows from investing activities: Purchases ofinvesmmnts Sale of investments Net cash used in investing activities Net decrease in cash Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents at end of year Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities Operating income (loss) Increase (decrease) in liabilities: Accounts payable Accraed claims Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities Noncash items: Change in fair value of investments 
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

(360,669) (360,669) 

$ 18~807 66,035 
(4,690) (18,285) 5.000 

(325,733) 70,307 14,535 84.842 
438,643 433,953 (80,530) 55~902 (98,815) 60~902 

$ (17~975) 414,015 396~040 (174) (1,701) (1,875) 



INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES 



Revenues: Rental fees Investment earnings Miscellaneous Total revenues Expenditures: Culture and recreation: 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Civic Center Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual December 31, 2003 (unandited) 

Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes Insurance Professional services Contract services Utilities Office and operating supplies Administrative expenses Travel and training Maintenance Other Capital outlay 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures Other financing sources: Transfer in Net change in f-and balance Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

See accompanying independent auditors" t~-port. 

Original and final budget 
202,500 18,000 .40,150 260,650 
346,427 64,157 2,000 5,000 130,750 48,740 26,750 4,000 32,200 97,000 

Actual 
239,793 57,456 22,254 319)503 
424,772 18,241 593 149,757 56,157 3,970 1,639 32,791 23,139 115.189 

Variance with final budget positive (negative) 
37,293 39,456 (17)896) 58)853 
(78,345) 45,916 2,000 4,407 (19,007) (7,417) 22,780 2,361 (591) 73,861 115.1891 

(496,374) 977,118 (6,745) 489,629 977.118 



Revenues: 

CITY OF BOSSieR CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Hotel Motel Taxes Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 
Original budget Final Actual Intergovemmental - state and parish shared revenues $ 1,450,000 1,450,000 1,794,876 Investment enmings Total revenues Expenditures: Capital outlay Excess of I~venues over expenditures Other fmancing sources (uses): Transfer in Transfer out Total other financing sources (uses) Net change in fund balunee Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

1~500~000 1~5007000 1~859,741 
741.493 
758,507 200,000 
200,000 958,507 

Variance with final budget positive ~negative) 
344,876 14~865 359.741 

752r473 417218 711,255 
747,527 200,000 
200~000 947,527 

1,818,523 1,070,996 
215,458 (1~290,493) (1,o75,o35L 743,488 

05,458) 1,290~493 
1t275~035 2,346,031 

$ 4 330 773 4 319 793 ~  2r3467031 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Fire Improvements and Operations Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 

Revenues." Sales tax, net Investment earnings Total revenues Expenditures: Capital outlay Excess ofrevenlleS over expenditures Other fmancing uses: 

Original budget 
$ 1,632,817 5.000 

Final budget Actual 
1,632,817 1,699,104 5.000 

Variance with final budget pusifive (nel~etive) 66,287 (5,ooo) 1,637~817 1~637p817 1~699) 104 61,287 
39.000 

lt637,817 1~598~817 1,696)468 97,651 



Revenues: Sales tax, net Investment earnings Total revenues 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Jail and Municipal Buildings Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual December 31, 2003 (unaudited) 

Expenditures: Capital outlay Excess of revenues over expenditures Other financing uses: Transfer out Net change in fund balance Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Original and final budget 
1,186,382 50.000 

Actual 
1,213,645 46~086 

Variance with final budget positive (negative) 
27,263 (3,914) 

484.000 882,517 (398r517) 
(875,o00) (497,786) 2~938~339 (375,168) 

$ 2~815~721 2~440~553 (375,168) 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Streets and Drainage Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual December 31, 2003 (unandited) 

Revenues: Sales tax, net Investment earnings Total revenues Expenditures: Capital outlay Excess of revenues over expenditures Other fluaucing uses: Transfer out Net change in fund balance Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 
See accompanying indelmndent auditors' rcimrC 

Original and final budget $ 1,364,339 151000 1,379~339 1 ~O00tO00 379,339 
(22o,66l) 

Actual 1,382,394 28~215 1~410p609 978~083 432,526 

Vartanee with final budget positive (negative) 

21v917 53,187 
53,187 

$ 1,642,179 1~695~366 531187 
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Fiscal Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property Fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 through December 3 l, 2003 

Assessed Value 163,245,850 184,287,480 203,005,170 225,760,430 243,058,780 256,358,740 296,336,780 296,288,890 309,006,730 

Estimated Actual Value 1~17,208,267 1,582,975,867 1,746~94,018 1,938,471,413 2~89,466,520 2,176,533,580 2,613,187,787 2,690,417,219 2,776,340,791 2,821,22~996 
Note: Assessed values are established by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor on January I of each year at approximately 10-15% of assumed market value. A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than every 4 years. The last revaluation was completed for the roll of January I, 2000 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Table 4 

Percent of Total Assessed to Estimated Actual Value 11.52% 11.64% 11.62% 11.65% 11.63% 11.78% 11.34% 11.01% 11.13% 11.15% 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt December 3 I, 2003 

Jurisdiction Total direct and overlapping debt - Bossier Parish, Louisiana, Bossier Parish School Board 
Net Debt 

Percentage of Debt AppUcable to the 

Table 8 

City's Share of Debt 

Notes: (1) Based on 2003 assessed valuation. (2) As of December 31, 2003, there are no general obligation bonds recorded in the financial statements of the City. 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Fiscal Year 1994 $ 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 200 I 2002 2003 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures Fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 through December 3 I, 2003 

490,000 493,389 (2) -- O) 
Interest 77,311 49,844 

Total Debt Service 567,311 543,233 

Table 9 

Debt Service a$1t Percentage Total of Total General General Expenditures (1) Expenditures 18,139,723 3.13 21,087,187 (4) 2.58 22,854,525 27,783,485 30,103,059 32,169,567 33,906,728 36,286,830 35,313,502 



~l~~ ~ 



71 



Fhe~ Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 
Notes: (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Demographic Statistics Fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 through December 31, 2003 
55,653 (3) 55,988 (3) 56,304 (3) 57,141 (3) 57,533 (3) 58,977 (3) 58,977 (5) 58,977 (5) 58,977 (5) 58,977 (5) 

Median Age (1) 30.7 30.7 29.8 30.0 31.6 31.6 31.6 31.6 31.6 33.8 

School Enrollment(2) 12,024 12,386 12,772 12,915 12,277 11,601 11,719 11,844 18,874 18,928 
State of Louisiana Research and Statistics for 1988-1992, Shreveport, Bossier, and Webster Parish Unemployment and Median Age Information from the Louisiana Office of Statistics for 1993-1998. Bossier Parish School Board (inside City limits) Per Special Census 1990 U.S. Census Latest statistical information under protest. 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Table 11 

Unemployment Rate (1) 7.6% 7.3% 6.9% 6.3% 5.6% 5.0% 4.9% 6.7% 7.4% 6.3% 



 



Horseshoe Entertainment Isle of Capri Southwestern Electric Power Company BellSouth Telecommunications Louisiana Riverboat Gaming Hibernia Bank Halliburton WaI-Mart Louisiana Machinery Pierre Bossier 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Principal Taxpayers December 31, 2003 
Type of Business Riverboat Gambling Riverboat Gambling Electric Utility Telephone Riverboat Gambling Banking Retail Sales Manufacturing Retail Sales Total amount for ten principal taxpayers Total for remaining taxpayers Total amount for all taxpayers 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

2003 Assessed Valuation $ 30,364,860 10,428,020 8,158,560 5,390,000 4,103,160 3,197,420 2,891,320 2,829,070 2,617,500 1,974,610 71,954,520 242,612,290 314,566,810 

Table 13 

Percentage of Total Assessed Valuation 9.65% 3.32% 2.59% 1.71% 1.30% 1.02% 0.92% 0.90% 0.83% 0.63% 22.87% 77.13% 100.00% 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Miscellaneous Statistics December 31, 2003 
Date of settlement Form of government Date established Date of incorporation Area-square miles Miles of streets: Paved Unimproved Police protection - number of policemen and officers Fire protection - number of firemen and officers Recreation: Parks - number of acres Number of playgrounds Number of picnic areas Number of street light~ Number of water storage tanks Total capacity of water storage tanks Raw water reservoir capacity Municipal water plant: Number of accounts Daily average consumption Employees - classified, appointed, elected, and exempt 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Table 14 

1843 Mayor - Council 1977 1907 41.36 
207.4 
209 197 
287 17 8 4,574 3 5,500,000 gallons 5,700,000 gallons 
21,546 8,792,000 gallons 903 



City Council Member Jeffery Darby Scott Irwin David Jones Timothy Larkin David Montgomery James Rogers Michael Slemp Don Williams 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY Compensation Paid to City Council Members December 3 I, 2003 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Table 15 

Compensation $ 10,800 1,662 10,800 10,800 11,382 11,418 5,815 10.800 73,477 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA OMB Circular A-133 Reports December 31, 2003 (With Independent Auditors' Reports Thereon) 
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KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shrevepoct, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members oftbe City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service fund of City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. We did not audit the component unit financial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority (Authority) which represents 71.5% and 27.1%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 03-1. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over fmancial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned ftmetions. We P, otcd no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the 



internal control over financial reporting, which we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated March 26, 2004. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 26, 2004 



KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to the Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular .4.-133 and on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federol Awards 
The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
Compliance We have audited the compliance of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the City) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2003. The City's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of taws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements. In our opinion, the City of Bossier City, Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that arc applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31,2003. Internal Control Over Compliance The management of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Bossier City, Louisiana's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressin[~ our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 



Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service fund of City of Bossier City, Louisiana as of and for the year ended December 3 I, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. We did not audit the component unit financial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority (Authority) which represents 71.5% and 27.1%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise City of Bossier City, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
March 26, 2004 

~- LL'P 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year ended December 31, 2003 
Federal grantor/pass-through ~rantor/pro~ram or duster U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Direct programs: Community Development Block Grant Emergency Shelter Grants Program Total Department of Housing and Urban Development U.S. Department of Justice Passed through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement: Domestic Violence After School Drug/Alcohol Prevention Local Law Enforcement Total Department of Justice U.S. Office of National Drag Control Policy Direct Programs: High Intensity Drug Traffic Area Award 

Federal CFDA number 
14.218 14.231 
16.575 16.579 16.592 

U.S. Department of Transportation Passed through Louisiana Highway Planning and Construction - Buckle Up Louisiana '98 20.600 Total expenditures of federal awards 
See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

Federal expenditures 
875,033 50.626 925.659 
22,573 490 67,260 90,323 
5.605 
4,515 $ 1,026,102 



(1) Basis of Presentatlon 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Year ended December 31, 2003 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. (2) Subroeipients Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Bossier City, Louisiana provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows: 
Community Development Block Grant 

Federal CFDA number Amount provided to subreeipients 14.218 $ 90,413 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 31, 2003 
Section 1 - Summary ufAuditor's Results Basic Financial Statements Type of report issued: unqualified opinion Internal control over financial reporting: ~ Material weaknesses identified7 No ~ Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the basic financial statements? None reported Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted? Ye_~s 
Internal control over major programs: s Material weaknesses identified? No ~ Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs? None reported Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified opinion Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?No Identification of major programs: CFDA number 14.218 United States Department of Housing and Urban Development- Community Development Block Grant 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000 Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OMB Circular A-133: No 

7 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year ended December 3 I, 2003 
Section 2 - Basic Financial Statement Findings Reported in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards Item: 03-1 
in which a quorum is present. State law requires that the City of Bossier City open all meetings to the public During 2003, the Bossier Parish District Attorney issued a ruling that the circulation of a letter signed by certain council members violated the spirit of the open meetings law in that from the letter's content it appears a decision was made by the council members that signed the letter. Effect: The City of Bossier City was not in compliance with state law Cause: Unknown. Recommendation: The City of Bossier City should take steps to ensure that all decisions are subject to due process and available to public access as required by state law. Section 3 - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs None 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

Finding 03-1 State law requires that the City of Bossier City open all meetings to the public in which a quorum is present. During 2003, the Bossier Parish District Attorney issued a ruling that the circulation of a letter signed by certain council members violated the spirit of the open meetings law in that from the letter's content it appears a decision was made by the council members that signed the letter. Name of Contact Responsible: Charles E. Glover Corrective Action Planned: The City will maintain a heightened sense of awareness of any potential violation of the spirit of the open meetings law and will open all meetings to the public in which a quorum is present. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Investments - The City records investments on a pooled basis along with cash and accrued interest. The allocation to the individual funds is recorded in one account as cash and is not separated into the components of cash, investments, and accrued interest. As a result significant year end adjustments arc required. At the time of purchase, the City should determine if the investment is short-term or long-term based on its maturity date and appropriate classification be made within the general ledger. We recommend that in the clearing account the City establish separate accounts for short and long term investments. Each separate account should be allocated to individual funds and each fund should reflect a separate account for cash, short-term investments, long-term investments and accrued interest. Status - The City is recording investments of cash, investments, and accrued interest in the individual funds in the appropriate dassificatlon within the general ledger. 
Tax Reconciliations - The subledgers for the property and sales tax collections are not reconciled to the general ledger. Currently the property tax department operates a module of the HtE system that indicates the amount received and accounts receivable. In addition, the sales tax department uses the Taxman program to record receipts and amounts due to the City. We recommend that a control be implemented to reconcile the subledgers for property and sales taxes to the general ledger on at least a monthly basis. However, for property taxes we recommend that this control be performed at least weekly during the months of November, December and January, as the majority of property taxes are collected during this period. Status - The accounting department made significant progress in trying to reconcile the general ledger to the property tax system last year. We will continue work with the tax department to reconcile the general ledger to the HTE tax system subledgers. 



Capital Assets - With the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, the City is now required to report capital assets for governmental activities in its financial statements. Capital assets can have a significant impact on the financial results reported by the City. Given this, we believe that controls over recording and accounting for capital assets could be strengthened. Specifically, in some instances, purchases were made during the year for capital assets that did not appear on the capital assets records. Also, the City did not report any retirements or disposals of capital assets. We recommend the City implement procedures to identify capital assets at the time invoices are coded. This process should include a review to ensure that all purchases have been coded to the correct expenditure accounts in the general ledger as well as the identification of all capital assets and their useful life. We also recommend that the City implement procedures to ensure as capital assets are sold, destroyed or retired they are removed from the capital assets records at the appropriate value along with the related accumulated depreciation. Status - All purchases that were identified as capital items were included in the capital asset records. Any assets that were sold or disposed during the year were reflected as a retirement. Federal Program Documentation - Payroll - One employee splits her time between a federal program and nonfederal duties. As required by the federal program an after-the- fact distribution of her time is maintained, however, these timesheets are not signed by the employee. We recommend the employee be required to sign each timesheet. 
Status - This employee no longer splits her thne between a federal program and nonfederal duties therefore this situation no longer exists. Federal Program Documentation - Authorization - We noted three instances in which check requests for a federal program disbursement did not reflect authorization by all appropriate parties. We also noted two instances in which an expenditure was only supported by a check request, no invoice or cheek copy could be located. While these costs were determined to be allowable, we recommend that the City implement controls to review payments to ensure the payment is supported by an authorized check request and an invoice. Status - All CRy disbursements are reviewed by the Controller or Assistant Controller for proper authorization and supporting documentation. 



Finding 02-1 State law requires that the total proposed expenditures shall not exceed the total of the estimated funds available for the year. This law was violated when the CenturyTel Center Arena Fund was budgeted to have a deficit fund balance. The 2002 budget for the CenturyTel Center Arena Fund budgeted a fund deficit of $52,204. Status: Corrective action was taken and this finding no longer exists. Finding 02-2 OMB Circular A-87 requires that personal activity reports supporting the distribution of salaries between multiple activities be signed by the employee. One employee who splits her time between federal program and nonfedenfl duties did not sign her personal activity report. Status: Corrective action was taken and this finding no longer exists. 



JJ~B 

March 26, 2004 

KPMG LLP Suite 1900 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: We have audited the financial statements of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the City) for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2004. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City, we considered its internal control in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. An audit does not include examining the effectiveness of internal control and does not provide assurance on internal control. We have not considered internal control since the date of our report. During our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control and its operation that are presented for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are intended to improve internal control or result in other operating efficiencies and are summarized as follows: 
The subledgers for the property tax collections arc not reconciled to the general ledger. Currently the property tax department operates a module of the HtE system that indicates the amount received and remaining amount receivable. We recommend that a control be implemented to reconcile the subledgers for property taxes to the general ledger on at least a monthly basis. However, we recommend that this control be performed at least weekly during the months of November, December, and January, as the majority of property taxes are collected during this period. Management's Response - The accounting department made significant progress in trying to reconcile the general ledger to the property tax system last year. We will continue work with the tax department to reconcile the general ledger to the HtE tax system subledgars. 
Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements, and therefore may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures that may exist. We aim, however, to use our knowledge of the City's organization gained during our work to make comments and suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, and the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor end Members of the City Council City of Bossier City March 26, 2004 Page 2 
We appreciate the assistance and cooperation of all of the personnel of the City. We will be pleased to discuss these comments and recommendations with you at any time. Very truly yours, LL'P 


